
NORTH STEYNE SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NORTH STEYNE SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

NORTH STEYNE SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Contents Page
Sponsors 1
Club Office Bearers 2
Objects of the Club 3
Reports
President 6
Deputy President 8
Secretary 9
Chief Instructor 10
Club Captain 12
Marketing 14
Youth 16
Junior Activities 18
Ripper nippers  20
General Activities 21
110th Anniversary 22
Ocean Swim 24
Awards & Statistics 30
Competition 34
Patol Hours 38
SNB 40
AGM Notice 42
Treasurer 43
Financial 44
Members 55
Aust/World Champs 59
Club Executives 60



North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 111th Annual Report | Page 1 

Grants

Sponsors

Supporters

Donations

SLSA, SLS NSW and SLS SNB Sponsors

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 
Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

CANDICE CATTELLCANDICE CATTELL

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Marketing Report 
Logos for logo page setout 

                                                        

                                    

                                                

                                                          

                                                 

 

                                                     

                                        

                        

                                

                                     

 

Kayinga Vineyard 
Limited

Langhorne Creek



North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 111th Annual Report | Page 2 

Club Office Bearers 2017 - 2018Club Office Bearers 2017 - 2018
PATRONS
Jean Hay AM (former Mayor of Manly), David Hay

DIRECTORS
President Frank gott
Deputy President Jack Sutherland
Secretary Christine Gibbs Stewart
Assistant Shannon Job
Treasurer Tonino Falzarano
Assistant Tim Platt 
Assistant Mark Neighbour
Club Captain Daniel Hillier
Assistant James Purvis
Chief Instructor Kyra Jenkins
Assistant David Vinson (to January 2018)
Competition Jodie Frazer
Assistant Deb Foote
Marketing David Cowell
Junior Activities Brian Mariotti
Assistant Hillary Burrows
Assistant David Guthrie (to December 2017)
Youth Joanne Cooper
Assistant Alex Salier
General Activities Peter Frater
Assistant Michelle Sas

OFFICERS, PANELS AND COMMITTEES
Child Protection Officer
Audrey Bruen
Executive Officer 
Paul Mathew
Public Officer 
Christine Gibbs Stewart
Honorary Auditor 
Trevor Lane
Honorary Legal Advisor 
Matt Garling
Honorary Trustees
Keith Crampton, Paul Day, Arthur McCarroll
Life Membership & Honours Panel (elected)
Shannon Job, Tracey Hare-Boyd, Lee Cooper, Paul Day
Judiciary Panel (elected)
Arthur McCarroll, Tracey Hare-Boyd, Lee Cooper, Keith Abraham, 
Bernard Burrows
Rules Panel (elected)
Lee Cooper, Tracey Hare-Boyd, Keith Abraham, Frank Traugott
Future Fund Committee
Tonino Falzarano, Paul Day, Frank Traugott, Tim Platt, Bernie 
Burrows
Ocean Swim Committee
Bernie Burrows, Tracey Hare-Boyd
Club Historian 
Simon Fry

DISTINGUISHED SERVICE
1982 S Ryan, R Higgins, B Anderson*, D Gordon*
1983 C Walton*, T Wise, CF Ashworth, M Gamlin*
1984 C Fry
1985 I Vickery*
1986 L Walker
1989 A McCarroll
1999 C Ryan, S Grose, G O’Sullivan, T Lane
2000 D O’Shannassy
2001 W Crampton, I Donald, J Fryer*
2005 HF Cranfield*, P Mathew, J Sutherland, T Howard
2007 KE Abraham, C Stanford, P St John, H Kernaghan, R Morton
2008 J Colwell, C Dooley, C Rath, M Keogh, L Cooper, T Platt, 
          J Hay AM
2009 B Cronly
2010 M Peacock-Smith, M Neighbour
2012 R Birch
2013 D Foote, S Job
2014 G Cooper, H Matheson, J Mastrangelo, F Traugott, 
          L Chalenor
2015 R Donaldson
2016 T Hare-Boyd
2017 D O'Brien, P Landsey, A Salier
2018 D Cowell

LIFE MEMBERS
KE Abraham 2016
WH Allison 1922*
W Anderson 1952*
JF Buckley 1955*
BW Burrows 1996
A Carter 1936*
J Colwell 2012
K Crampton 1986
FH Dargan 1930*
PA Day 1975
LA Ellison 1926*
HC ‘Rastus’ Evans 1932*
WC Farran 1921*
AF Fitzgerald MBE 1958*
S Fry 2011
R Geary 1950*
S Grose 2008
TG Harland 1965*
NW Higham 1957*
LV Hind 1920*
P Hull 1998
Col. DH Love 1919*
AJ McCarroll 1983
DJ McGrath 1948*
P Mathew 2011
OGH Merrett 1913*
RC Middleton 1922*
GA Millar 1953*
EG Morgan 1951*
GH Morgan 1941*

ED Morton 1928*
R Morton 2013
DA O’Shannassy 2001
GB O’Sullivan 2003
AH Own 1938*
CK Paton 1947*
CD Patterson 1911*
NR Purcell 1971
JB Pym 1915*
DH Richardson 1945*
DK Robinson 1957*
AV Robinson 1938*
NJB Roelvink 1996
H Rogers 1965*
EVM Shemwell 1912*
CG Soutar 1940*
GR Soutar 1943*
P St John 2009
C Stanford 2010
J Sutherland 2008
SAR Tuck 1942*
S Tocchini 1963*
RT Walden QPM 1944*
WH Walter 1921*
C Walton 1968*
JJ Waterer 1924*
GR Webb 1953*
CW Whitehead 1923*
EW Whitehead 1931*
* Deceased
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Malcolm IRVINE
Passed away – 16 October 2017
Born 12 October 1960, Malcolm was a long time member of 
North Steyne and part of the 1983 premiership rugby team. 

John STRONG
Passed away – 21 December 2017
John was a member of North Steyne in the 1960s, 70s and 
80s. He was an Australian sprint finalist, part of North Steyne 
rugby, a Manly Warringah Rugby League player and a Manly 
police officer. 

Cath DONALD
Passed away – 24 April 2018
Catherine Donald’s life was tragically cut short on 24th April 
2018. Cathy was the wife of Ian Donald, Club Secretary for 
4 years (1991-1994) and Chief Instructor for 3 years (1995-
1998). Cathy leaves behind 3 lovely children, Euan, Ailie and 
Eamon and will be sadly missed.

Dick HIGGINS
Born July 22nd 1922 – Died February 4th 2017
Walter Richard "Dick" Higgins had a long association with 
the surf club - 2 Senior belt titles, coach of the North Steyne 
Rugby team and member of the junior R+R team. Dick always 
talked about his love of North Steyne which he passed on to 
his children and grandchildren who have been members of 
the club.

Vale

Family and friends, inc Life Members of North Styene attendeded the scattering of the ashes of Dick Higgins 12th May 2017

OUTSTANDING SERVICE
2009 G Cooper
2010 S Job, D Foote, A Traugott
2011 F Traugott
2012 T Hare-Boyd, R Humphrey, J Cooper
2014 P Friedman, T Rankine
2016 D Cowell
2017 T Falzarano, R Chapman, J Purvis
2018 J Frazer, M Maddox, M Stewart, C Gibbs Stewart

LONG SERVICE AWARDS
75 Yr Neil Purcell OAM, 
60 yr Will Slayter, Ron Morton, Jack Sutherland, 
50 Yr Nicholas Roelvink, Arthur McCarroll, 
40 Yr Tim Fry, Clem O'Grady, 
30 Yr Paul Hull, 
25 Yr Timothy Huisjen

NATIONAL MEDAL
2018 P Mathew, T Platt, F Traugott

PATROL SERVICE AWARDS
15 Yr Deborah Foote, Malcolm Peake, Richard Donaldson 
10 yr Rebecca Chapman, 
5 Yr Michael Bernerius, Phillip Macken, Courtney Sloan, 
Mark Burns, Ella Falzarano, Angela Silberberg, Daniel Hillier, 
Ryan Bogatez, Ben Parry, Emma Hillier.

Alan MCCLURE
Passed away – 29 October 2017
Alan McClure was a new member of North Steyne and in 2017 
attained his bronze medallion. Alan had a compassionate and 
caring nature and was an incredibly thoughtful person. One of 
Alan's gifts was his ability to be able to speak to everyone, junior 
members through to the Board, and he was genuinely interested 
in how you were. Alan loved the outdoors, the beach, and the 
mountains. He was a kind family oriented man, with a heart that 
encompassed all who knew him. He was enthusiastic, generous 
and hardworking and had the ability to see the need of others. 
Alan always put his hand up and went over and above to make a 
difference for those in need, and did it without a second thought.
Alan had big heart, and he was full of empathy and understanding 
for those less fortunate. He never failed to give or to assist, and 
this became a simple pleasure in his life. Alan touched many peo-
ple at North Steyne and we have named our Young Clubperson of 
the Year award in his memory.

Sincere sympathy to all Members and their families who have suffered the loss of loved ones this past year.
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Objects of the ClubObjects of the Club, ,  Achievements Achievements,  ,  Membership FeesMembership Fees
OBJECTS OF NSSLSC
NSSLSC is a charitable community based service organisation. NSSLSC is located within the Sydney Northern Beaches branch 
of Surf Life Saving New South Wales and Surf Life Saving Australia. 
NSSLSC is established for the Objects to: 
a. study, teach, promulgate and practice the methods of surf lifesaving; 
b. minimise loss of life and injury by providing surf lifesaving patrols and equipment for the purpose of rescues, 

resuscitation and first aid; 
c. foster, promote and encourage community service and sporting competition through surf lifesaving; 
d. conduct carnivals, competitions and social functions for the benefit of NSSLSC; 
e. pursue and manage funds to promote these Objects including sponsorship, fundraising, investments and marketing 

opportunities; 
f. promote applicable national, state, branch and NSSLSC standards, policies, procedures and techniques for aquatic 

safety and lifesaving; 
g. act at all times in the interests of its members and surf lifesaving; and 
h. carry on any activity, whether directly or indirectly, which aims to enhance the interests of its members and surf 

lifesaving. 

CLUB ACHIEVEMENTS 2017-2018
• No lives lost while on patrol
• Club into its one hundred and eleventh year
• Awarded 2nd most outstanding club on the Sydney Northern Beaches
• Awarded most outstanding club in Education on the Sydney Northern Beaches
• Received 9 awards at the Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Awards
• Outstanding celebrations for our 110th anniversary with our 110th Black & Gold Anniversary Dinner, visit by Premier 

Gladys Berejiklian, and a very successful Heritage Day
• Widespread media coverage including in the Manly Daily and an Aussie Heroes feature on the Today show
• Membership up by 10%
• Tracey Hare-Boyd and Trae Hare-Boyd awarded branch and state Rescue of Month for January 2018 
• Ran the 28-day Steyne’d Challenge which involved 40 Cadets in over 1000 hours of education, training and volunteering
• Represented at branch, state and Australian surf life saving championships in lifesaving events and surf boats
• Bronze at “Aussies” in U17 Male Champion Life Saver – Joe Jenkins
• Ran special needs Ripper Nippers program for 6th consecutive year with increasing numbers
• Staged a highly successful 20th Annual North Steyne Ocean Swim 
• Provided water safety for 20/Twenty Cerebral Palsy Alliance annual swim and course marshals for Fairfax Sun Herald 

Sun Run
• Provided life saving services and clubhouse for the Vissla Sydney Surf Pro
• Awarded a number of major grants 
• Shannon Job continued as Deputy President and Tracey Hare-Boyd as Director of Member Services for Sydney Northern 

Beaches SLS Branch

MEMBERSHIP FEES 2017-2018
Member category  Annual fee
Active Senior $90
Active Reserve $90
Long Service $90
Past Active $90
Distinguished Service $45
Outstanding Service $45
Student $60
Active Junior and Cadet $60
General $90
Nipper $90
Family (3-4) $240
Family (5+) $300

Outstanding Service  Outstanding Service

Thank you to all those who contributed photographs used in this publication including David Sawyer, Frank Traugott, 
Jo Cooper, Emma Hillier, Hillary Burrows, David Cowell and members of the competition teams.
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Our 110th anniversary season 
has been outstanding. There 
were many highlights – a gala 
dinner, visit by the Premier, 
display of our heritage, 
recognition for our members, 
support for a world surfboard 
riding event, 20th annual ocean 
swim, hosting a carnival, 10% 
increase in membership and a 
life saving rescue.

The rescue was a remarkable 
one. At 8.30am on 5 January 

2018, a 65 year old man had a heart attack whilst swimming at 
Shelly Beach. It was out of hours, away from our beach, when 
two of our best trained members were first on the scene. Tracey 
Hare-Boyd and son Trae Hare-Boyd dragged the man out of the 
water. Tracey immediately began CPR whilst Trae ran to Manly 
LSC to get a defibrillator.

The man’s heart had stopped for 30 minutes. Together with other 
medical specialists they brought him back to life. Tracey and Trae, 
the right people on the spot at the right time, were awarded the 
branch and state Rescue of the Month for January 2018. James 
Griffin, MP for Manly, mentioned the rescue in the NSW Parliament.

Our lifesavers were also excelling back on our beach. Our record 
remains intact: no lives lost whilst North Steyne SLSC members 
have been on patrol in 110 years. This is supported by our tagline: 
North Steyne SLSC proudly serving the community on North 
Steyne Beach for 110 years. Dan Hillier had a great first year as 
Club Captain. He was a deserved Clubperson of the Year, and 
Tony Falzarano was a deserved winner of my President’s Award.

It was a busy year also for events celebrating our 110 years. The 
highlight was our 110th Black & Gold Anniversary Dinner at St. 
Patrick’s Estate, Manly on 4th November 2017. Chris Stewart, 
our “master of ceremonies” and radiant in red, along with Katy 
Gompes and Claire Oxlade organised a classy and fun event. The 
Premier, Gladys Berejiklian, visited the club the next morning as 
part of our celebrations. She met with members and Nippers, 
and with Stephen Pearce, CEO of SLSNSW, awarded the National 
Medal for Service to 3 of our members.

On 12th November 2017 we hosted a successful junior beach only 
carnival for the branch.

From 9th February to 8th March 2018 we lent our clubhouse 
and beach to the Vissla Sydney Surf Pro. Large crowds came to 
North Steyne to watch this world class surfboard riding event at 
a designated world surfing reserve with good surf and perfect 
weather conditions. It was part of what was to become our 
“endless summer”.

On 25th March 2018 we held our 20th annual ocean swim. It 
was one of our best. The sun was out, and the numbers were up. 
It was fascinating to watch the wise older swimmers enter the 
water 200m north of the pipe to catch the rip out.

On 5th May 2018 we opened the Club to the public on Heritage 
Day. We showed memorabilia, had panel discussions with life 
members, told stories and celebrated our long history of serving 
the community. We welcomed our special guest, Rochelle 
Nichols, author of Hell and High Water, to talk about one of North 
Steyne’s most famous members Cecil Healy.

This season was also significant for 3 other events which I 
attended that honoured Cecil Healy, 100 years after he died on 
the battlefield in Somme, France on 29th August 1918. On 22nd 
February, Northern Beaches Council named the new pool after 
John Devitt AM and Cecil Healy. On 22nd April, Rochelle’s book 
Hell and High Water was launched at Queenscliff SLSC and Cecil 
Healy was honoured at the Manly LSC/ Manly Surf Club Anzac 
Day ceremony.

David Cowell and Tracey Hare-Boyd were also honoured this 
season. David was named NSW Government Volunteer of 
Year, Sydney North and Tracey was a finalist in the Rotary 
International, Inspirational Woman of Year. David and Tracey 
were also given an Outstanding Community Service award at the 
inaugural Northern Beaches Council Australia Day celebration. 
These awards were 2 of only 10 for the entire northern beaches 
region. Congratulations and thanks.

There were many other outstanding achievements this season: 
Joe Jenkin’s bronze medal at Aussies; “Our extraordinary league 
of [six] gentlemen” for their collective 400 years of volunteer 
service; our board also deserves thanks for their stability and 
commitment. Our Presentation Night and grant applications were 
other successes.

During the season we also supported a number of charities and 
events including the Sun Run, the Cerebral Palsy Alliance 20/
Twenty Challenge, the Special Olympics “Soar and Roar”, Bear 
Cottage and a church group who provided free monthly meals 
from the surf club hall to those in need.

It is with pleasure that I present the 111th Annual Report to the 
members, sponsors and friends of North Steyne Surf Life Saving 
Club for the 2017/18 lifesaving season.

Frank Traugott
President

President’s Foreword - Frank TraugottPresident’s Foreword - Frank Traugott
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I have seen the Club go through many ups and downs over the 
years. It is wonderful to see all our outstanding young people 
who are involved in many facets of the Club, including the board. 
I am particularly impressed with our young females who are so 
full of enthusiasm for our Club and who won a number of major 
awards at Presentation Night. In my opinion, bringing women 
into surf lifesaving certainly saved it. There is no doubt that surf 
lifesaving would have been significantly diminished today, or even 
non-existent, had that not happened. 

It is easy being the Deputy President under President Frank 
Traugott as he certainly takes a lot on. His leadership has been 
outstanding, and thanks to him we have accomplished so much 
this season. 

I would like to encourage absent life members, disengaged 
distinguished and outstanding service members and all past 
members to consider returning to the Club. It is very important 
to remain active and involved and contributing to the local 
community. North Steyne is a very special place, and by returning 
you will once be part of our special culture, connect with old 
friends and see just how good it is. 

See you back on the beach.

Jack Sutherland
Deputy President 

It has been an exceptional 
year with a focus on our 110th 
anniversary. The year started 
with the outstanding 110th 
Black & Gold Anniversary 
Dinner which brought friends 
and family together from 
near and far. At the dinner 
we shared stories, talked 
about our achievements, re-
connected with old and new 
friends and had many laughs. 
I felt very proud that night, 
as did, I know, all members 

in the room.  Those who came before us and are no longer with 
us would be blown away with what we have achieved. I have 
celebrated the Club’s 50th, 75th, and 100th anniversaries and I 
must say the 110th has been one of the best.

The season continued on a high with a renewed focus and 
interest in surf boats, and very worthy performances from 
competitors across all age groups. I am extremely proud that 
once again we can claim “no lives lost” and North Steyne’s special 
culture remains strong with great comradery, genuine caring and 
a commitment to looking after each other.

The A-Team was honoured to be awarded the Team of the Year at 
the Club’s Presentation Night at the end of the season. When we 
all joined the Club, it wasn’t very strong and we faced significant 
difficulties. It was our love for North Steyne and belief in what 
we were doing that drove us to do better and helped us become 
a very tight crew. Our special bond continues today, and I don’t 
know what life would be like if I didn’t have North Steyne. 

Deputy President’s Report - Jack SutherlandDeputy President’s Report - Jack Sutherland
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The 2017-2018 season for North Steyne has been exceptional as 
we celebrated our 110th anniversary. A great deal of effort and 
time was spent planning, organising and then enjoying all related 
activities. The early part of the season was very much focused on 
the 110th anniversary dinner, and what an excellent night that 
was! The event was sold out and we enjoyed a great evening with 
exceptional speeches, great services at an iconic venue, plenty of 
laughs and fun on the dance floor. A big thanks to Claire Oxlade 
and Katy Gompes who used their many talents to ensure that the 
dinner was a big success. 

I am very pleased to report that membership numbers increased 
this season to 813 total. This is a 10% increase from last season, 
and the second year that we have experienced a growth in 
member numbers. Membership categories that grew included 
General Members, Nippers, Active Seniors and Youth (15-18 
years). It was great to see an increase in Nippers and Youth which 
is very important for our future. It is also great that we had a slight 
increase in the Active Senior category as this is the majority of our 
volunteers and the backbone of our patrols.

Only a few clubs on the Northern Beaches experienced 

membership growth and it is 
great to be one of them! 

Once again much of our 
discussion during Board 
meetings was on the 
importance of our members 
and ensuring strong retention. 
Our 110th anniversary 
celebrations tried to include 
all members, no matter what 
the age. It was great to be 
recognized by so many for 
what we have achieved over 
our 110 years. Those long serving and life members are to be 
congratulated for all they have contributed to the Club. They 
are role models for all our younger members, and we should be 
proud that we have several people who have been members for 
50 years plus, not to mention 75! 

We held 10 Board meetings over the season. They were well 
attended with all areas actively represented. Frank Traugott’s 
leadership continues to be outstanding and we have a cohesive 
and productive Board. Jack Sutherland also provides tremendous 
guidance drawing on his many years of experience at the Club. 

Finally, I was very honoured to be awarded the Branch 
Administrator of the Year. This is an award I share with many as 
it takes a big team to run a surf lifesaving club. A special mention 
to Shannon, Assistant Secretary, and Frank and Tony for all their 
support. A big thanks also goes to Audrey who really does most 
of the work and makes my job easier and much more enjoyable.   

Christine Gibbs Stewart 
Secretary

Secretary’s Report - Christine Gibbs StewartSecretary’s Report - Christine Gibbs Stewart
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Chief Instructor’s Report - Kyra JenkinsChief Instructor’s Report - Kyra Jenkins
Higher awards

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques (ARTC)
ARTC is one of the most challenging awards offered by Surf Life 
Saving. It builds heavily upon skills learnt in the Bronze course and 
adds new ones to achieve a higher level of competency. It was 
great to see so many ready to take on the challenge. This season 
we congratulate 5 new members who have achieved this award. 

First Aid
Performing first aid is a major component of our patrols, and 
first aid courses are very important as they provide a higher 
level of skill for patrolling members. Having members with more 
in-depth knowledge on the beach is essential and helps patrols 
and first aid situations run smoothly. This season we had 35 
members successfully complete the first aid certificate, many of 
them Cadets. Congratulations to all members who completed the 
course this season.

IRB Awards
The IRB represents the most important rescue tool that a patrol 
possesses. Its flexibility, speed and maneuverability makes it 
useful in a wide variety of situations including rescues in the 
break, search and rescue operations and providing water patrols 
and surveillance. 

The IRB Crew Course provides candidates the skills to crew the IRB 
in a range of surf conditions. Over the season we ran 3 IRB Crew 
Courses with trainers Richard Donaldson and Matt Chapman. 
It is encouraging to see that we have gained 19 new crew. 
Congratulations to all new crew.

The IRB Driver Course extends a crew persons skills to provide 
them with the skills to drive the IRB in a range of surf conditions, 
implement patient pickups and direct the crew person. It is an 
incredibly valuable award to have on the beach and this season 
we added 1 new driver. 

Spinal Management 
Spinal Management is an incredibly valuable higher award 
that teaches candidates how to properly maintain and care for 
someone with a suspected spinal injury. This season North Steyne 
was fortunate enough to host a spinal management course with 
16 people gaining the spinal management award. 

Other Awards
We had 2 members complete the Silver Medallion Aquatic 
Rescue Course. This course teaches candidates how to deal with 

Core training

Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC)
Thirty One (31) young North 
Steyne members completed 
their SRC this season. The SRC is 
undertaken when members are 
in the U14s. This award marks 
the end of their Nippers journey, 
a graduation of sorts, and their 
transition into the senior club and 
the Cadet program.

During training sessions, it was amazing to see so many Nippers 
who previously had been nervous and lacking confidence 
work successfully as a team and coach each other through the 
water and theory components. These new SRCs were posted 
to patrols across the Club. Given the high standard shown this 
year, I’m confident that North Steyne will continue to fulfill our 
responsibilities on patrol. 

The group represents the future of our patrolling strength, and 
please join me in welcoming them onto patrol and encourage 
them as they continue to gain new experiences and develop their 
skills. A special thanks to this year’s SRC trainers, Tracey Hare-
Boyd assisted by Trae Hare-Boyd, and the SRC coordinator, Brian 
Mariotti.

Bronze Medallion
The Bronze Medallion is the entry level lifesaving qualification. It 
provides the basic skills that all other courses build upon, and as 
such it is our most important award.

This season 54 people achieved their Bronze Medallion, which 
is a great result. I had the privilege to conduct and assist with 
some of the many courses we ran and it was amazing to see the 
candidates grow and gain confidence in their skills throughout the 
course, particularly those that were new to the Club and had not 
previously held an SRC. These members are now on patrol with 
North Steyne.

School Programs
The SCEGGS Redlands Bronze program was also held again this 
season. Redlands Bronze runs on a Wednesday morning at the 
school campus starting at 7:00am during the 4th term. Wet 
training runs on a Sunday afternoon. This year, 17 students 
participated in the program. Trainers were Tracey Hare-Boyd and 
Trae Hare-Boyd.
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search and rescue situations. We also had 2 members complete 
their RWC Operators qualification this season which is a great 
achievement for these members and the Club. In addition, North 
Steyne also had 8 people complete their Beach Management 
Certificate this season. Congratulations to everyone who achieved 
these higher awards.

Proficiencies
Proficiencies are always a hectic and logistically challenging time of 
the year, and the beginning of the season was no different. Through 
everyone's hard work we were able to have the vast majority of 
members deemed proficient and ready to patrol for another season. 
Thanks to all members who took the time to do their proficiency, and 
thanks to all our delegates and assessors who assisted with running 
proficiencies.

Compliance
Aside from training, there are numerous compliance requirements 
each season. We held Education Panel meetings and the re-
endorsement process, and we passed our gear inspection at the 
beginning of the season, which is a huge undertaking every year. 
North Steyne also provided assessors who gave up their time to assist 
with gear inspections through the Sydney Northern Beaches Branch.

The Importance of Trainers and Assessors 
North Steyne is known for the high level of individual skills of 
our members. To maintain this, an experienced and well-trained 
Education Team is paramount. The North Steyne Education Team is 
dedicated to providing opportunities to engage in award training, 
either core or higher awards, for all club members. The Education 
Team is also committed to growth, and with this in mind, I would 
encourage all of you to consider being a trainer as I can honestly 
say that being a trainer is one of the most rewarding experiences I 
have had in Surf Life Saving, and I would encourage anyone who is 

thinking about giving it a go to talk to anyone on the Education Team. 
This season we had 2 new trainers (1 full trainer and 1 probationary 
trainer) join the Education Team and several probationary trainers are 
continuing to work towards their endorsement. Thanks to all those 
involved in mentoring these new trainers. 

The other component of education is assessing and North Steyne 
is dedicated to growing our assessor team by encouraging existing 
trainers and future trainers to consider moving into assessing roles. 
This helps to ease the burden on our more experienced assessors 
and it would be great to see some of the new trainers gain the 
assessor qualification over the next couple of seasons. We had 4 
members complete their Certificate IV in Training & Assessment - Joe 
Mastrangelo, David Vinson, Tracey Hare-Boyd and Frank Traugott.

Thanks to everyone in the Education Team this season for all the hard 
work and effort you have put in this season, and in particular Tracey 
Hare-Boyd and Frank Traugott for their assistance. Thank you to 
David Vinson, Assistant Chief Instructor, for his work in the first half of 
this season.

Kyra Jenkins
Chief Instructor
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Another challenging but successful 
lifesaving season for North Steyne’s 
2017/2018 patrols is complete, 
with ‘No Lives Lost’ protecting our 
community and visitors, either 
local or from around the globe.  
Our highly trained and dedicated 
lifesavers worked hard to keep 
our beach safe. In doing so we 
patrolled for 7553 cumulative 
hours and provided quality 
lifesaving services to all visitors on 
North Steyne beach. As always, 

the success of this season was reliant on the contribution of our 
patrolling members, and their understanding families. Thank you 
for your commitment to keeping our beach safe this season.

Throughout the season we conducted 42 rescues with tubes, 
using the IRB, boards or with no gear, which is a reduction 
from the previous year. Additionally we provided 121 first aids. 
Members undertook 5133 preventative actions which is an 
increase over the previous season. I am pleased to note the high 
number of preventative actions and the correlation to the small 
number of rescues – preventing rescues before they need to 
occur is a sign that our lifesavers are doing their job well. 

It was a very busy season, with the Vissla Sydney Surf Pro 
replacing the Australian Open of Surfing and other community 
and Club events such as the 20/Twenty Challenge Cerebral Palsy 
Alliance Swim and, of course, our annual Ocean Swim which was 
held in very trying conditions with large numbers of participants. 
The number of members who volunteered to be involved in 
these extra events, going above and beyond their normal patrol 
duties to lend a hand, was very impressive and a testament to 
the nature and quality of members at North Steyne. We couldn’t 
run these events without you – thank you. 

Proficiencies
After a successful gear inspection, and thank you to all involved, 
the season began with proficiencies for all patrolling members. 
Over 250 proficiencies were conducted across all awards. A huge 
thanks to Kyra Jenkins, Chief Training Officer, who organised 
our trainers and assessors for each proficiency session. Thanks 
also to Tracey Hare-Boyd, Paul Mathew, Shannon Job, Keith 
Abraham, Frank Traugott, Joe Mastrangelo, James Purvis, Deb 
Foote, Richard Donaldson, Kyra Jenkins, Matthew Chapman, 
Dannii Edwards and David Vinson for their hard work in ensuring 

everyone’s skills remained up to date.  As always there are 
challenges getting our members proficient and something we 
need to continue to enhance year on year, however, as noted the 
effort this year was fantastic.

Patrols
North Steyne’s patrols were, as history has shown, excellent 
again this season. Any critical incidents were dealt with quickly 
and calmly, and in a professional manner. Three (3) of our 14 
patrols had new patrol captains, with all the new captains doing 
an exceptional job of keeping the patrols running smoothly 
throughout this transition. Thank you to Ryan Bogatez & Jeff 
Brown, Mark Stewart, Ella Falzarano, Nick Carrington, Dannii 
Edwards, Jo Cooper, Harry Hickey, Danny Gompes, Paul Mathew, 
Tim Platt, James Purvis, David Cowell, Tracey Hare-Boyd and 
Bernie Burrows for their dedication to ensuring our patrols run 
smoothly.

I would like to thank Maxine Peacock-Smith who again expertly 
compiled our patrol roster.  Additionally, our IRB section was 
well looked after by our IRB Captain Matthew Chapman and 
supported by Richard Donaldson. These members did a great 
job keeping on top of maintenance and were integral in IRB 
education throughout the season. 

James Purvis’s assistance as Vice-Captain was instrumental in 
keeping the lifesaving section running smoothly.  James had 
supported our previous Club Captain Rebecca Chapman and 
continues to do so supporting myself in this critical role.  I cannot 
thank him enough for his efforts over the last 4 seasons that he 

Club Captain’s Report - Dan HillierClub Captain’s Report - Dan Hillier
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has been in this role, and I look forward to working with him in 
the future. He is always ready to pitch in and help out wherever 
needed and was instrumental in supporting and facilitating the 
annual awards night. 

North Steyne SLSC has an incredibly diverse membership whose 
skills and knowledge are evident every patrol. Your commitment 
to public safety is unparalleled, and your influence to teach the 
next generation the requisite skills, and pass on the knowledge 
to ensure we continue to provide our community service is 
exceptional.  I look forward to seeing each of you continue surf life 

saving’s proud tradition of vigilance and service at our community 
Club.

Presentation Night
The 2017/18 Presentation Night was hosted at the Balgowlah 
RSL, a major and long-term sponsor of North Steyne. The night 
was well attended by members from all sections of the Club. 
Presentation Night recognises members who have made an 
exceptional contribution to the North Steyne throughout the 
season in all facets of Club life, ranging from lifesaving to surf 
sports to Nippers, education and administration.

In particular, I would like to congratulate our Patrol of the Year 
– Patrol 8, with Captain Danny Gompes. This patrol has been 
incredibly dependable and capable all season, as it has been for 
many seasons. They are fortunate to have a dedicated team with 
coverage of all patrol awards to ensure the patrol functions to its 
capacity, and as mentioned earlier also impart their knowledge to 
the next generation of patrolling members.  Thank you for your 
vigilance to keeping our beach safe.

Congratulations to: Mark Stewart, Patrolperson of the Year; Dave 
Cowell, Senior Patrolman of the Year; Margaret Lavers, Senior 
Patrolwoman of the Year; Dino Constantinos, Junior Patrolman 
of the Year; and, Rose Richardson, Junior Patrolwoman of the 
Year. You are fantastic role models for all Club members, and your 
contribution to lifesaving at North Steyne SLSC is invaluable.

I am looking forward to another great season kicking off soon. 
See you on the beach.

Dan Hillier
Club Captain.



The backdrop of North Steyne 
SLSC’s 110th anniversary year 
was perfect to showcase all that 
is Black & Gold, the fabulous 
history of 111 seasons on our 
beach, the breadth and diversity 
across our membership. This 
season has been shared with our 
sponsors, supporters, donors 
as well as the broader lifesaving 
movement and our local 
community. North Steyne SLSC 
was splashed across all forms 

of media from Surf Lifesaving newsletters to newspapers, social 
media and mainstream TV.

Sponsors

Our generous sponsors were again on 
board for our 110th Anniversary Season 
and as always, a huge thanks for their 
generous support. 

Channel 9 News were again prominent 
on the beach with their banners and 
surfboat sponsorship whilst also 
undertaking a number of beach 
activations to provide water stations 
at events and TV show promotions. A 
Nipper Parent 'reliever' - a day on the BBQ, was a 
most welcome variation on sponsor support and indicates their 
involvement with our Club at all levels. We were also fortunate 
during the Family Food Fight promotion to be the winner of Family Food Fight promotion to be the winner of Family Food Fight
monies being offered. North Steyne fought it out against other 
Sydney Clubs that Channel 9 sponsor.

Candice Cattell and team Stone Real Estate, our Manly agent, 
were again on board and a big part of the early season events 
including the 110th Anniversary Dinner at St Patrick's Estate. 
Candice has been a sponsor now for several years and we trust 
this continues.

Manly Surf School hold a prominent position in our Club building 
on the sand. They have been generous in their support with 
us at North Steyne Beach and continue to offer support of our 
fundraising activities. 

The Hotel Steyne returned to our Club and have been a new 
sponsor of the Surf Boat teams. They have also been fundraising 
with our competition teams to assist with equipment and the 
cost of getting to competitions. They will continue to be a part of 

North Steyne SLSC for the foreseeable future and happy to host 
any event you may have.

Finally, as we go to print the ink has now dried on a new sponsor 
for next season. Chris Perry and the team at Pure Legal have 
come on board and wil be a huge part of the Surf Boat section. 
This is a huge injection for the Surf Boat Crews and we will see 
this roll out from the start of the next season.

Thanks again to all sponsors for your generous support and 
as Club members we should all be patronising their services 
whenever the oportunity arises.

Building Grants
The Community Building Partnership Grant received in 2014 
for building upgrades was finally expended and $49,500 was 
received at the end of September. This grant allowed many areas 
of the building to be upgraded or improved with works including: 
installation of a new shade sail over the outdoor courtyard; 
rubber flooring for the Nipper’s and main board cages; a new 
ventilated fuel cabinet in the IRB shed; new stairs to the beach, 
the IRB shed and club entries; slip treatment to the change 
rooms, training board area and the main front steps; stripping 
and sealing of the southern boatshed floor; safety signage; and, 
new board racking is underway for the main board cage.

The NSW Government Office of Sport grant awarded in March 
2017 for a total $175,000  ($130,000 from the NSW Government, 
and $45,000 which is to be provided in kind, cash, donations or 
other support) is being negotiated with Council. Whilst primarily 
for the replacement of the balconies, this grant will also be used 
to improve access to the Club and replace the roller shutters at 
the northern end of the building.

In August 2017, the Club applied for and was successful in 
attaining a building grant from the Northern Beaches Council. 
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These funds are part of the council amalgamation program with 
$1m being available to the Northern Beaches surf lifesaving clubs. 
We still await details of the $200,000 grant which is to provide 
new complying stairs to the Club from the promenade, as well as 
an accessibility ramp to the public hall.

In 2018, the Club was successful in attaining two additional grants 
of just over $56,000 to replace the gas boosted solar hot water 
system, and upgrade and improve the clothing room storage, 
kitchen in the hall, patrol room and club room. These works will 
be designed for approval during the off-season with works to 
commence over the next few months.

Program and Special Project Grants and Donations
Several other grants were awarded towards Club programs, 
initiatives and special projects.

A grant was received from the NSW Government Office of Sport 
for just over $24,000 towards the Ripper Nippers Access to Sport, 
the North Steyne beach carnival, training for coaches and the 
club room and bar area. Two of these grants have already been 
acquitted with events held this season, and the other works to 
commence shortly.

Other grants and donations included: 
Clubs Grants NSW, Balgowlah RSL, $6,000; 
JN Kirby Foundation, $5,960, for the Ripper Nippers and Nippers 
programs; 
Lendlease Foundation, $2,200, for the Ripper Nippers and 
Nippers programs; 
DormaKaba, $2,750, for rescue boards;
Warnanbool SLSC for the donation of a Nipper’s board; 

Manly Lions Club, $4,000, for Ripper Nippers; 
Channel 9, $5,000, for the Family Food Fight promotion; 
Balgowlah RSL, $5,000, North Steyne Ocean Swim; 
Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Surf Lifesaving Equipment 
grant.

Fundraising 
Finally, the Club conducted several fundraising activities which 
the membership actively participated in. The first was a 110th 
Anniversary Wine Fundraiser organised in conjunction with 
Mark Maddox and Kayinga Vineyards Limited in South Australia. 
This was a great success and raised just over $4,200, as well as 
provided many gifts and prizes for special events. 

The 2018 Sun Run involved almost 80 volunteers, and we raised 
$3,000 from the event. Finally, the 110th Black & Gold Raffle 
raised $2,700 with prizes donated from many Club supporters 
including Artussi by Eurolinx for the main raffle prize, Balgowlah 
RSL, Bennett Surfboards, Brookvale Bike Factory, Diageo, 
Dripping Wet, Hotel Steyne, Manly Surf School, Three Beans Café 
Manly and Zoggs. 

All in all, it was an exceptional effort and the much needed funds 
will be used for our programs and activities for many seasons to 
come.

David Cowell
Marketing Director
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2017-18 was another strong 
season for our 14-17 year-olds, 
patrolling, training and doing 
further awards at North Steyne 
and all with smiles on their faces. 

Following on from the successful 
program for youth members 
over the previous seasons, an 
achievement this year within 
our youth membership was the 
completion of the “Steyne.d 
Challenge” by a dedicated cohort 
for a second year. 

The Steyne.d Challenge
Held during the month of January the Steyne.d Challenge is a 28-
day event which has been developed for the Club’s youth to have 
fun, improve membership retention, strengthen engagement and 
improve lifesaving skills. Importantly, it provides an opportunity 
for our younger members coming out of the structured format of 
Nippers to have a way to get into activities in the senior club and 
enjoy time with other youth members at North Steyne. 

The Challenge encompasses a broad range of activities, and 
everyone who participates makes a commitment to complete 
a daily challenge from the range of activities over a 28-day 
period. The Challenge has an image and a brand and to highlight 
achievement participants become ‘Steyne.d Survivors’ at the 
completion of the Challenge – having met set criteria during the 
challenge.

Executing the Challenge requires collaboration. The youth 
portfolio directs the program, with significant involvement from 
the Board, club coaches, patrol captains, parents and supporters 
along with the fantastic young people of our Club.

Youth Director’s Report - Jo CooperYouth Director’s Report - Jo Cooper
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Results
The Steyne.d Challenge engages a group of youth members who 
do something every day for 28 days. The resulting 1000+ hours 
of additional volunteering and training over their regular patrol 
hours are a great testament to the success of the event.

Our youth members undertook numerous courses over the 
season including:
SRC; Bronze; First Aid; ARTC; IRBC; IRBD and Training Officer. 

Youth Networking and Mental Health First Aid
This season North Steyne Cadets were part of a great initiative 
supported by Surf Lifesaving Sydney Northern Beaches Branch. 
An inter-club collaboration between Narrabeen, North Steyne 
and Avalon SLSCs saw the hosting of three Youth Networking and 
Mental Health First Aid days where our younger members came 
together from across the branch to get to know each other, learn 
about watching out for one another, and better understanding 
what to do if someone needs help. The days were a great success 
thanks to the great crew of facilitators, Batyr, Johnny Shannon 
and Burn Bright who provided some brilliant ways to open 
the channels of communication on difficult topics and in a fun 
environment. Enormous thanks to Branch, Tracey Hare-Boyd in 
particular, Tammy Cook from Narrabeen and Mike Stanley Jones 
at Avalon for their hard work in making the events such wonderful 
days for our group.  Such initiatives can only make the lifesaving 
movement more resilient and our beaches a better place to be. 

Special thanks
None of this is possible without the support of our great Cadet’s 
parents, club coaches, trainers, patrol captains, the North 
Steyne Board and their committees who spend a great deal 
of time creating a wonderful place for our youth members to 
spend time. The Education Team who made the large number of 
further awards and a second SRC group possible, and our Club 
Captain who ensured where possible all our Cadets went onto 
a patrol with friends. Our Competition Director and teams for 
their encouragement of the group and also the coordination of 
our training schedules. General activities, our Club Secretary, 
President and Deputy President along with marketing and our 
Treasurer for their ongoing support of the group and their gear. 
But mostly thanks to the NOUGHTIE CREW themselves (those 
born after 2000), who are a genuinely committed group of young 
people that we can all feel tremendously proud of. Bodes well for 
a vibrant North Steyne in the coming years.

Jo Cooper
Youth DIrector



Nippers at North Steyne had 
a great year on the beach in 
season 2017/18. We saw an 
increase in enrolments and 
continued strong attendance 
at our regular Sunday Nippers 
and special needs or Ripper 
Nippers programs. We saw a 
strong culture developing with 
good attendance at our regular 
additional training sessions. We 
also continued our partnership 
with Sydney Wet ‘N’ Wild 
Nippers, and maintained on-

going support to our Club through our community engagement 
program.

Wet ‘N’ Wild 
We had almost 200 Nippers on the beach in November for the 
third annual visit of Sydney’s Wet ‘N’ Wild Nippers. Brilliant 
conditions on the beach and in the water gave our visitors a 
chance to experience the surf, visit the patrol tent and make new 
friends in a competitive but fun atmosphere. Our SRC graduates 
returned the visit in January, providing water safety for their 
Nippers program as part of our annual commitment to supporting 
Wet ‘N’ Wild Nippers.

Community Engagement
Our contribution to the community engagement program this 
season involved Nippers and their families in their droves waking 
early to support the Sun Herald Sun Run, involving runners of 
all kinds as they took on the daunting distance of up to ten 
kilometres from Dee Why SLSC to the Manly Corso. Some of our 
freshly minted SRC graduates braved the challenging conditions 
to help provide water safety for the North Steyne Ocean Swim. 
North Steyne were also represented at the 2018 Manly Anzac Day 
march and wreath laying ceremony by our Junior Club Captain, 
Caitlin Heffernan and a troop of Nippers.

Surf Rescue Certificate 
An amazing crew of U14 Nippers and a group of Nipper parents 
completed their SRC or Bronze Medallion this season. Our newest 
surf lifesavers were presented with their red and yellow uniforms 
and experienced their first patrol with the mighty 6ers - thanks 
Jo Cooper and team! A big thank you to our Chief Instructor Kyra 
Jenkins, senior members of the Club and parents, as well as Tracey 
Hare-Boyd and other training officers who supported the training 
and assessment for this course. 

Competition
Attendance at competition was steady this year and we continued 
to see Nippers place and medal at inter-club and branch 
competitions this season.

Highlights from the competition season were:
Thomas Hamilton - 1st 1km run U14 boys - North Steyne Beach 
Carnival
Thomas Hamilton - 2nd 1km run U14 boys - Queenscliff Beach 
Carnival
Thomas Hamilton - 3rd 2km run U 14 Boys - Manly Nipper NATS
Thomas Hamilton - 2nd 2km Run U14 Boys - Branch
Amelia Delaine - 2nd Beach Flags U9 girls - North Steyne Beach 
Carnival
Rory Pennie - 3rd place U8 boys - Wade Race - Branch

Sunday Nippers
Our Sunday Nippers this season was a great success with 
membership up slightly and a great turnout each session. We 
carried on regardless of weather conditions, sharing the pool with 
Queenscliff and organising activities in the hall on the few occasions 
when the beach was closed or unavailable due to the Vissla Sydney 
Surf Pro.
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Sunday Nippers simply would not happen without our enthusiastic 
and committed team of Age Managers, parents and the Nippers 
management team that never failed to get the job done. 

Special Events
We have not neglected the social side of things this season, 
running a number of special events for Nippers such as the 
Halloween Disco and summer school holiday camp. A big thank 
you to Hillary and Bernie Burrows and the support crew for 
making these events such a success.

Congratulations and Thank-You
I’d like to congratulate this year’s Nippers Chairman’s Award 
winners, Emilie Morris and Oskar Towsin-Brant for a super effort 
this season. We have farewelled our senior (U14) Nippers and SRC 
group, led by Junior Club Captains, Evie Farrell and Ross Downey 
and our Junior Club Vice Captains, Rory Kehoe and Cerys Walton. 
Congratulations to our Junior Club Captains for 2018-2019, Ethan 
Brocklehurst and Caitlin Heffernan.

Thanks to our talented coaches Clayton Kearney, Paul Collins and 
Bec Stewart for your time and efforts you have invested in our 
Nippers this season. We have had an enthusiastic group of Nippers 
attending our extra sessions including beach sprints on Tuesday 
afternoons and boards on Saturday afternoons. Thanks to Bernie 
Burrows and Jono Colwell and the other parents for their efforts 
running the board sessions, week-in and week-out, summer and 
winter.
Huge thanks to our Cadets for your tireless assistance this season 
providing water safety, coaching and mentoring of Nippers through 
a diverse range of activities.
We thank all the members and parents for giving their time at 
carnivals over the season as supporters, water safety, officials and 
helpers. Each season we have the privilege of giving a big thanks 
to Keith Abraham, Chris Dooley, Tim Laurence and David Cowell 
who regularly officiate at Nipper carnivals, despite not having any 
Nippers at North Steyne SLSC. Thanks for your ongoing and stalwart 
support to the future of our club. Without your generous effort and 
time our Nippers would not have been able to compete.
Thanks to David Sawyer for his stunning photography throughout 
the season and for creating the special video for our presentation 
day - the Nippers loved seeing themselves on the big screen. 
Thanks to our Club President, Frank Traugott and Board of Directors 
for your continued support to our Nippers program, and to all our 
patrolling members who provided water safety for us during the 
season. Thanks to Warnambool SLSC for the donation of a nipper 
board this season and for your outstanding cadets who provided 
outstanding one-on-one training with our nippers during their visit.
To our sponsors, without you we could not run our Nippers 
program, so thank you. Your financial support provides essential 
equipment, clothing and funds to help cover our operational 
expenses.
A MASSIVE part of the Nippers team is our crew ‘upstairs’ - Karen 
Ure (clothing), Shani Walton (registrations and attendance), Delia 
Farrell and Hillary Burrows (carnival entries) and to the Nipper 
parents who helped to run the BBQ. Also to Jodie Frazer for her 
suggestions and answering our endless questions about awards, 
carnivals, and a range of other things. 
And finally, to my Junior Activities Assistant Director, Hillary 
Burrows. Thanks for everything. You have been instrumental to our 
success this season. 

Brian Mariotti
Junior Activities Director
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This was the 6th Ripper Nipper – Special Needs Season which saw 
32 extraordinary kids and their families at North Steyne Beach 
each Sunday morning from October 2017 through to April 2018. 
We had many new kids join this season with a variety of mild 
intellectual and/ or physical disabilities, with their siblings and 
parents also being involved. We regularly had 20-24 kids on the 
beach each week with acceptance, inclusion and fun being our 
goal. We also continued to transition kids to mainstream Nippers 
with support in order to help them achieve everything possible.

Due to the numbers this season we trialled a program to integrate 
our Cadet and Youth members into Ripper Nippers. These fine 
young members assisted as mentors, water safety and ensuring 
everyone was learning, having fun and doing this safely. Without 
this group, we could not have had as many kids in the water with 
both groups and the families getting just as much out as the other. 
This was further supported by two of our Ripper dads gaining 
their Bronze Medallion. Congratulations to Fernando Pinto and 
Rob (Wildman) Wilde.

We saw many of our kids shine on the beach as they overcame 
fears, learnt new skills and continued to achieve their personal 
bests. North Steyne SLSC again held a Beach Carnival with an 
invitation sent to all the Northern Beaches clubs to attend. We 

had Newport, North Narrabeen and Mona Vale attend on the day 
with many medals won. 

Around 10 of our Ripper Nippers also went to the Branch Carnival 
at Mona Vale. We had an exceptional day on the beach with many 
bringing home medals. Our thanks to Michael Wasley, Rob Fry and 
Bryce Munro for hosting the event.

Our program has been lauded in the Special Needs circles and 

we were asked to contribute to QLDSLS’s forum to rollout Special 
Needs programs to all Queensland Clubs. This was followed up 
by Aspect – Autism Spectrum Australia asking us to be the face of 
the rollout of their Inclusive Beaches Program which develops aids 
and program tools to assist all Clubs working with Special Needs 
kids, particularly those on the Autism Spectrum. This has now 
been adopted by SLSA with a forum to be held in June 2018 to 
rollout an SLSA endorsed program to all Clubs nationally. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=pPwfMHq-
QHc&feature=youtu.be

Finally, we could not continue to provide this program at no 
financial cost to the kids and their families, who already have 
many costs and pressures with kids having special needs. 
This season was supported with several grants and donations 
including: -

Balgowlah RSL, Channel 9, JN Kirby Foundation, Lendlease 
Foundation, Manly Lions Club, the NSW Government – Office 
of Sport and of course, the members of North Steyne SLSC who 
make this all possible.

We already have many new enquires as well as most of our exist-
ing Rippers keen to get going again! 

See you all on the beach.

David Cowell
Ripper Nipper Facilitator



General Activities had a very 
good season. On the BBQ, our 
sales topped $40,000. After 
taking out costs, the profit was 
a little over $22,000. This is a 
big increase from last season, 
and an indication that our 
sausages are a big hit on the 
beach!

 I would like to thank all the 
patrols. Sometimes we had so 
many volunteers that it was 
almost dangerous! The next 
week, however, there were so 

few that we just worked a little harder. A special thanks to the Cadets 
and the Boaties - you did more than your share. 

The A Team received a well-earned award as Team of the Year. 
Thanks also to Paul and Misch for your service on the bar. 

Thank you, as well, to all our members for your support.

Peter Frater
General Activities Director.
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North Steyne had an 
outstanding season as 
we focused our efforts 
on celebrating our 110th 
anniversary, and ensured 
our achievements were 
widely recognised and 
acknowledged.

Our anniversary 
celebrations involved 
a team of people who 
planned and ran the 
various activities.  A 
special thanks goes to 
Frank Traugott, Jack 
Sutherland, Chris Gibbs 
Stewart, Claire Oxlade, 
Katy Gompes, David 
Sawyer, Simon Fry, David 

Cowell, Tony Falzarano, Audrey Bruen, and the North Steyne 
Board for all their support and hard work. 

The celebrations involved participation from the youngest 
members of the Club to those who have been members for many 
decades, and spanned the entire season. It was great that so 
many members were able to participate and help us celebrate.

110th Black & Gold Anniversary Dinner
The centerpiece 
of our celebration 
program was our 
110th Black & Gold 
Anniversary Dinner 
which was held on 4 
November 2017 at 
St. Patrick’s College in 
Manly. Attended by 
some 200 guests, the 
night of celebration 
involved drinks, 
dinner, dancing and a 
number of speeches that helped us reflect on our proud history, 
acknowledged the contribution of our members, and talked about 
our important contribution to the community of Manly, and the 
surf lifesaving movement. Along with members of North Steyne, 
there was representation from Manly LSC and Queenscliff SLSC, 
including their presidents   Tony Bonner and Craig Susans. David 
Murray, President of SLSNSW attended, as did James Griffin, our 
local state representative and Michael Regan, Northern Beaches 
mayor. During the evening, we had a fantastic video playing which 
captured many moments throughout our proud history. 

Visit of the Premier Gladys Berejiklian
On Sunday 5 November the celebrations continued at North 
Steyne. We were visited by NSW Premier Gladys Berejiklian and 
James Griffin, our local member, who toured the Club, talked to 
our Nippers and presented National Medal of Service awards to 
Paul Mathew, Tim Platt and Frank Traugott. We had planned for 
the Premier to spend more time on the beach, but unfortunately 
the weather was not in our favour which cut her visit short. Steve 
Pearce, CEO of SLSNSW was also present and joined the morning 
patrol.   

Heritage Day
Our 110th celebration program concluded with North Steyne 
participating in Heritage Day on 5 May 2018. Heritage Day, 
which was coordinated by the North Beaches Council, gave 
us an opportunity to open our Club to the public, tell stories 
about the past, and celebrate our long history of serving the 

North Steyne 110th Anniversary CelebrationsNorth Steyne 110th Anniversary Celebrations
community. Our Heritage 
Day program consisted of 
presentations by a number 
of life members, a special 
talk by Rochelle Nicholls, 
author of Hell and High 
Water, the story of one of 
North Steyne’s most famous 
members Cecil Healy, and 
demonstrations of old and 
new rescue techniques. It 
was a fantastic day which 
attracted many visitors, and 
a great way to conclude our 
110th celebration program.

Promotional Activities
Our 110th celebrations 
attracted a lot of media 
in the form of local and national newspapers, television and 
community websites. We highlighted the importance of public 
safety, surf lifesaving and our history. We worked particularly 
closely with the Manly Daily which featured several articles about 
North Steyne. 

The highlight was the coverage of our 110th anniversary on 
the Today Show which featured 5 of our life members and 
their contribution to North Steyne and surf lifesaving totaling 
over 400 years combined. Entitled Aussie Heroes, the coverage 
stressed the important work of surf lifesaving and thanked our 
extraordinary league of gentlemen for their volunteer service over 
many years. Footage included our 5 life members walking on the 
beach, interviews with Deputy President Jack Sutherland and life 
members Ron Morton and Neil Purcell and a demonstration of the 
reel. 

The Nippers received a special congratulations from Channel 
9’s Peter Overton who made a special video for North Steyne 
congratulating us on our anniversary, and thanking the Nippers for 
being involved with surf lifesaving.

During the year we were very active on our website and social 
media channels with information about our 110th anniversary 
celebrations. This included re-posts, stories and articles which all 
had the constant tagline and theming - North Steyne SLSC proudly 
serving the community on North Steyne Beach for 110 years. 

Thank You Members!
All in all we had a great season and finished with our record intact 
of no lives lost in 110 years whilst we have been on patrol. Our 
members are to thank for our terrific celebrations as North Steyne 
would not exist without our members who volunteer their time to 
ensure the community is safe on our beach. The generations who 
have come before us would be very proud of what North Steyne 
has become, and we will continue to ensure an even stronger Club 
into the future.
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North Steyne’s ocean swim is regarded as one of the best 
swims in the calendar.  In our 20th year, we lived up to these 
expectations and more.

In the week leading up to the swim, the swell gods had sent a 
flurry of huge surf for the organisers to sweat on with hazardous 
surf warnings, rainy and cold days.  The organisers did daily surf 
report checks and watched the weather forecast. Whilst the 
weather was looking good for the day, the swell was still forecast 
to remain big.  Ironically, the logo and picture on the sought after 
ocean swim t-shirt was changed to incorporate a wave….who 
would have known!!  

On the Sunday morning, 25 April 2018, as final set-up was taking 
place, the waves were hard to predict with small sets coming in, 
but then larger ones would strike. At one stage, it looked like the 
1km swim would take a right hand turn towards Shelly but at the 
last minute, organisers decided to leave the course as it was and 
ran the 1km swim towards Queenscliff and back.

With buoys and markers being ushered out to sea and the course 
taking shape, the beach too was starting to come alive.  Club 
President Frank Traugott and David Cowell with their set-up crew 
started raising the roofs on the pop-up tents. The finish funnel 
was put in place and sponsor’s and supporter’s flags were raised 
and banners hung to add some colour to the event.

The course was again perfectly laid out by our team of reliable 
IRB drivers headed by Richard Donaldson. Distinguished member 
Shannon Job worked alongside Club Captain Dan Hillier taking on 
the responsibility for water safety coordination on the beach.  

In the hall, registration personnel were arriving along with our 
treasury.  Our greeter was on hand to ensure the crowd flowed to 
the correct sections and no one was left looking lost at the door.

Our hardworking team of registration takers and treasury settled 
in to make sure that all swimmers were entered, marked off, 
capped, tagged and ready for the starting line.  

The number of swimmers this year surprised the organisers as 
year after year most swimmers wait to see what the conditions 
and weather are like on the morning of the swim.  However, this 
year, despite the weather and swell forecast, online registrations 
were at an all-time high.  Just as many registrations were also 
taken on the day, and in the end 434 swimmers were officially 
registered, with 378 swimmers completing the swim due to the 
swell and possibly some other factors.  

It was also surprising that the majority of swimmers chose to 
participate in the 2.8km swim in the challenging conditions, as in  
previous years, the majority of swimmers had signed up to do the 
short course.   

By the time the first wave of swimmers was on the line for the 
1km swim, the sun was making the day enjoyable, however, the 
swell was still menacing, making a few people anxious about the 
conditions.    

As in previous years, the 1km course took off from North Steyne 
and headed north towards Queenscliff and then back.  The 2.8km 
swim headed south to Cabbage Tree Bay turning towards Manly 
and then heading north back to the shores of North Steyne.  Due 
to the conditions and swell, some competitors chose to start the 
race further north on the beach to take advantage of a rip that 
was running half way down towards Queenscliff.  

With the swell rising and falling and the tide coming and going, 
it was difficult not only for the competitors, but for our water 
safety who used rescue tubes, rescue boards, and were in the 
IRB. They are to be congratulated and thanked as the conditions 
were extremely challenging and the whole team of volunteers 
were exceptional in managing these. 

Of special mention is George van Dyck who assisted with water 
safety on Support Ski 3. George spent the morning on the ski in 
the break zone assisting, herding, leading and rescuing swimmers 
as necessary.  

North Steyne’s reputation for running a well organised and 
safe ocean swim continues to build year after year.  As well, the 
event would not be possible without the amazing  volunteers 
who put their hands up to help out with water and beach set-up, 
registrations, fruit cutting and distribution, data entry, water 
safety, first aid, pack down and clean-up of everything.

As the volunteers started packing up there were no complaints, 
just thanks from the swimmers who had attended and enjoyed 
themselves. The word on the beach and feedback received was 
that the 20th ocean swim was definitely challenging, but very 
worthwhile to compete in.  

Congratulations to all of those involved and to all who helped 
make this ocean swim another great success. A special thanks 
goes to the A-Team who ran a wonderful and delicious BBQ. 
Thanks to our major sponsor, Balgowlah RSL for their continued 
support of the ocean swim, and also thanks to the Directors of 
Balgowlah RSL for their continued support of North Steyne.

20th Annual Ocean Swim - 20th Annual Ocean Swim - 
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We continue to be supported by Amigo Towels and Harbord 
Growers, Stockland Balgowlah for their discounts, prize donations 
and fruit on the day.

We received nothing but positive reviews for the event and 
organisers are continually taking on board ideas for next season’s 
swim. 

We look forward to seeing more swimmers next year as the 
North Steyne Ocean Swim turns 21!!

1km Male Winners
Logan Kaye   19 & Under 13:22
Joshua Attard  20 - 29  13:26
James Goswell  20 - 29  14:43

1km Female Winners
Jennifer Whiteley  50 - 59  15:55
Victoria Trost  20 - 29  16:19
Kate Shedden  20 - 29  16:53

2.8km Male Winners
Joshua Attard  20 - 29  37:41
Simon Nothling  30 - 39  37:59
Thomas Gilbert  20 - 29  39:18

2.8km Female Winners
Nicole Watts  20 - 29  42:13
Kate Shedden  20 - 29  47:07
Victoria Trost  20 - 29  47:21

Bernie Burrows and Tracey Hare-Boyd
Ocean Swim Organisers

Bernie Burrows & Tracey Hare-BoydBernie Burrows & Tracey Hare-Boyd



George Morgan Memorial Shield
Club person of the Year

Dan Hillier

Alan McClure Young Club person of the Year Trae Hare-Boyd
President’s Award Tony Falzarano
George Webb Memorial TrophyPatrol of the Year Patrol 8: Danny Gompes (C), 
Rory Macintyre (VC), Bruce Mansfield, Cameron Griffith, Caroline Minihane, 
Daniel Flynn, Emily Colvin, George Van Dyck, James Hassell, Jennifer Grant, Joe 
Mastrangelo, John Kelly, Joseph Wotherspoon, Kai Brandson, Lulubelle Ryberg-
Neale, Mark Burns, Mark Van Dyck, Maya Auld, Nellie O’Connor, Sabine Roberts, 
Samuel Moloney, Sara Macwilliam
Philip Hodson Memorial Trophy
Patrolperson of the Year

Mark Stewart

Brother Ross Downard Memorial Trophy
Patrol Captain’s Trophy

Ella Falzarano

Neil Newton Memorial Trophy
Volunteer of the Year

Michael Altenburger 

Harry Taubman Memorial Shield
Most Lifesaving Awards

Tracey Hare-Boyd

Peter Logan Memorial Shield
Best First Year Bronze Holder

Erick Newcomb

Best Senior Patrolman David Cowell
Best Junior Patrolman Constantinos (Dino) Tsinonis
Best Senior Patrolwoman Margaret Lavers
Best Junior Patrolwoman Rose Richardson
Vanessa Anderson Memorial Shield Rose Richardson
Garry O’Sullivan Trophy
Training Officer of the Year

Kyra Jenkins

Keith Abraham Trophy
Assessor of the Year

Richard Donaldson

Founder’s Cup: Most Outstanding in 
Swimming & Lifesaving Activities

Joe Jenkins

Eric Morgan Memorial: Best & Fairest in 
Competitor R&R or Surf Swimming

Timothy Platt

Clem Susans Memorial Trophy
Best Boatman

Michael Bernerius

Maud Druitt Trophy
Most Outstanding Team

The A-Team: Ray Grose, Jack Sutherland, 
Dave O'Brien, Ron Morton, Peter Frater, 
Keith Crampton, James Kernahan

Rastus Evans Memorial Trophy
Most Outstanding Surfboat Crew

Tiger Steynes - Nicholas Perry, Euan 
Ramsey-Stewart, Robert Szewczak, 
Evan Tancred, Oscar Cowell (Reserve), 
Colin Stanford (sweep)

Masters Competitor of the Year Tim Platt
Open Competitor of the Year Kyle Wong
Under 17 Competitor of the Year Joe Jenkins
Club Captain's Patrol :
Captain Nick Carrington, Vice-Captain Molly Parker, ARTC Operator Emily Watkins, 
IRB Driver Emma Hillier, IRB Crew Oscar Cowell, Senior Patrolwoman Alex Salier, 
Senior Patrolman Harry Hickey, Junior Patrolwoman Sophie Tetley, Junior Patrol-
man Josiah Tea, SRC Patrolwoman Cerys Walton, SRC Patrolman Peter Marias.
Surf Sport Commendations
Beach Caroline Yarnell
Water Ross Birch
Lifesaving Ewan Cooper-Frater
Training Deb Foote
Boats Euan Ramsey-Stewart

North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 111th Annual Report | Page 26 

North Steyne Awards 2017 - 2018



Bronze Trainers
Paul Mathew
Tracey Hare-Boyd
Shannon Job
Joe Mastrangelo
Keith Abraham
Rebecca Chapman
Deb Foote
Frank Traugott
Joseph Mastrangelo
Jay Greer
Matt Chapman (p)
Kyra Jenkins (p)

Bronze Assessors
Paul Mathew
Tracey Hare-Boyd
Shannon Job
Joe Mastrangelo
Keith Abraham
Rebecca Chapman
Frank Traugott

ART Trainers
Tracey Hare-Boyd
Shannon Job
Joe Mastrangelo
James Purvis
Keith Abraham
Rebecca Chapman
Frank Traugott

ART Assessors
Shannon Job
Joe Mastrangelo
Keith Abraham

IRB Trainer
Shannon Job
Keith Abraham
Richard Donaldson

IRB Assessor
Keith Abraham
Shannon Job
Richard Donaldson

Facilitators
Shannon Job
Tracey Hare-Boyd
Frank Traugott



Bronze (51)
Lara Hurley
Ingrid Monaghan
Frazer Richardson
Rose Richardson
Maya Walton
Emily Watkins
Maxwell Wait
Nicholas Perry
Edward White
Zeyna Tinker
Harry Algar
Maya Auld
Penelope Butler
Patrick Cody
Emily Colvin
Simon Dupond
Jennifer Grant
Cameron Griffith
Gretel Grundy
Alice MacDonald
Alec Price
Dominic Swift
Josiah Tea
Dino Tsinonis
Lachlan Van der Pluijm
Braydon Wessels
Chloe Woodward
Samuel Leafe
Sara Macwilliam
Billy Moore

Sophie Tetley
Isabel Witty
Hugo Bowhill
Ella Doughty
Sean Farrell
Jenna Collins
Eliza Tompson

Saige Conners
Chris Haughton
Indya Hogan
Sara Italiani
Olivia Kehoe
Sarah Lally
Mary Landrak

Freya O’Neill
Fernando Pinto
Salvador Ribeiro
Nicholas Solterbeck
Hebe Webster
David Unicomb
Andrew Woodhead

RWC (2)
George Van Dyck
Matthew Chapman

First Aid (35)
Annika Altenburger
Izabella Baker-Brown
Michael Bernerius
Kai Brandson
Jenna Collins
Janell Cowell
Ewan Cooper-Frater
Luke Davies
Ella Doughty
Tonino Falzarano
Sean Farrell
Sarah Gatherer 
Deborah Foote
Jennifer Grant 
Tracey Hare-Boyd
Trae Hare-Boyd
Caitlin Heffernan

Cath Hillier
Dan Hillier
Edward Hillier
Shannon Job
Rachel Kinghorn
Sarah Kinghorn
Sara Macwilliam
Pieter Marais
Chloe Mason
Erik Newcomb
Claire Oxlade
Georgia Quinn
Ella Ritchie
Desmond Silberberg
Mia Stevens
Mark Stewart 
Frans Traugott 
David Vinson
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Awards 2017 - 2018

Spinal Management (16)
Michael Altenburger
Maya Auld
Mechelle Hare
Emma Hillier
Sara Macwilliam
Frazer Richardson
Rose Richardson
Lachlan Van der Pluijm
Maya Walton
Emily Watkins
Braydon Wessels
Chloe Woodward
Molly Parker
Joe Jenkins
Karen Webster
Erik Newcomb

ARTC (5)
Maya Auld
Emily Watkins
Rose Richardson
Ella Doughty 
Maya Walton

Aquatic Rescue (2)
Rebecca Chapman
Kyra Jenkins



Surf Rescue Certificate (31)
James Bellenger
Joshua Birley
Matthew Birley
William Collins
Jess Conners
Caitlin Heffernan
Stephen Martin
Jodie O’Neill
Ewan Randell
Antonio Remedios
Georgina Taylor
Izabella Baker-Brown
Max Bottomley
Ross Downey
Evie Farrell
Sarah Gatherer
Edward Hillier
Tiana Kasalo

Rory Kehoe
Pieter Marais
Chloe Mason
Caroline Minihane
Annika Muller
Nellie O’Connor
Eloise Patterson
Sabine Roberts
Lulubelle Ryberg Neale
Natalie Silberberg
Amelie Tressel
Cerys Walton
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IRB Driver (1)
David Vinson

IRB Crew (19)
Nathan Mistry

Erik N ewcomb
Ella Ritchie

Daniel Hillier
Solomon Holder

Daniel Lavers
Lucy Mason

Joseph Purvis
Maya Auld

Simon Dupond
Jennifer Grant

Joe Jenkins
Sarah Kinghorn

Frazer Richardson
Rose Richardson

Lachlan Van der Pluijm
Chloe Woodward

Trae Hare-Boyd
Braydon Wessels

Beach Management (8)
Jeffrey Brown
Shaun Falzarano
Ella Falzarano
Tonino Falzarano
Michael Altenburger
Mark Burns
Danny Gompes
Molly Parker

Certificate IV in Training & 
Assessment
Joe Mastrangelo
David Vinson
Tracey Hare-Boyd
Frank Traugott



North Steyne
Beach Attendance

490,570

Preventative
Actions
5,113

Total Rescues 42
No Gear 8 
Rescue tube 12
Rescue board 18
IRB 2
Other 2
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STATISTICS 2017 - 2018



Total First Aid 121
Fracture/dislocation 3
Major Marine Stings 3
Major Wounds 8
Minor Cuts/Abrasions 32
Minor Marine Stings 70
Other 2
Resuscitation 1
Spinal 2
Lost Children (and found) 2
Searches 2
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Surf Boats
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IRBs

Surf Boat River RowingSurf Boat River Rowing



Overall competitor numbers 
were on par with last season, 
however, we have seen 
particular growth in the 
Masters Beach & Water and 
Boats divisions. North Steyne 
was represented at Branch, 
State and Aussies carnivals this 
season with medals achieved at 
each across a number of events 
and age groups. 

Lifesaving
Our Champion Lifesaver competitors had another successful 
season with Joe Jenkins securing his 2nd Bronze Aussie's medal 
in this event in Perth. North Steyne also achieved Branch and 
State medal placings in the male U17 event (Joe Jenkins and Ewan 
Cooper-Frater) and female Masters (Deb Foote). Congratulations 
also to Rose Richardson who achieved a State 7th placing in the 
U17 female event amongst a very competitive field. 

Our lifesaving competitors (and officials) were able to hone their 
skills on their home beach this season with North Steyne hosting 
a Champion Lifesaver competition training event in the lead 
up to the Branch titles. This event was well attended and the 
subsequent results speak for themselves!

A very big thank you to my Assistant Director, Deb Foote for 
facilitating Champion Lifesaving training this season.

Surf Boats
We’ve seen major growth in surf boats, with four crews rowing 
this season, as a result of tireless recruitment efforts for new 
boat rowers and the return of past members. The master’s crews, 
the Pacemakers and the Tigers, were joined by an A-crew, the 
Nomads and a reserve team, the Tiger Steynes. All crews rowed 
at all the local carnivals, attended Pac Palms and the Branch 
and State titles, with the Pacemakers picking up a gold medal at 
Branch. The Nomads and Tiger Steynes made the trip across to 
the Aussies in Perth, getting through to the quarter finals in some 
tricky conditions.

Beach
North Steyne’s mother/son combo, Kyle Wong & Caroline Yarnell, 
continued to collect medals in the 2km event. Caroline added 
another Branch gold medal to the trophy cabinet and Kyle picked 
up a silver in the same event, competing in the Opens Men’s 
division at branch for the first time.

Once again, North Steyne hosted a very successful Nipper’s Beach 
Only Carnival. This event is is now a regular fixture on the Sydney 
Northern Beaches competition calendar and this season attracted 
several Nipper competitors from other branches.

Masters
Congratulations to Tim Platt who achieved both Branch and 
State medals in the 1km beach run. In addition, Tim also picked 
up three individual Branch medals. He was joined by Masters 
team mates Ross Birch, Mark Neighbour & Paul Mathews at local 
carnivals throughout the season, who all went on to achieve 
medal placings at the Masters Branch titles.
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Competition Director's Report -  Jodie FrazerCompetition Director's Report -  Jodie Frazer



Once again, North Steyne turned out several teams to compete 
in the Palm Beach Masters carnival and were supported by an 
enthusiastic cheer squad at this popular event.

Branch Championships held at Collaroy and Narrabeen
Water events (Narrabeen) and Beach events (Collaroy) events 
were held on separate weekends to allow competitors to 
compete across all events.

Opens placed 7th on 55 points

Masters 10th on 76 points

Juniors placed 14th on 14 points

Overall placing 12th.

Acknowledgements
I’d like to offer a very big thank you to all the legends behind the 
scenes:

Carnival officials – Chris Dooley, Keith Abraham, Joe Mastrangelo, 
Frank Traugott, Bernie Burrows, Shannon Job, Tracey Hare-Boyd, 
Deb Foote, David Guthrie, Paul Mathew, Tim Lawrence, and 
Jo Cooper.

Coaches – Shannon Job, Rebecca Stewart (craft), Col Stanford 
(boats), Peta Kilgour (core strength and swimming), Paul Collins 
(speed and fitness).

Logistics and gear steward – David Cowell, Col Stanford, and Keith 
Abraham.

IRB support (carnival water safety) – Richard Donaldson, Matt 
Chapman, Mark Stewart and all the IRB drivers and crew who 
volunteered their time on carnival and training days.

It has been a great year for North Steyne competitors and I would 
like to offer a massive thank you to my assistant director, Deb 
Foote for all your help this season.

Go North Steyne!

Jodie Frazer
Competition Director
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Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Championships
Overall Results:
Opens  7th  place on 55 points
Masters 10th place  on 76 points
Nippers  14th place on 14 points
Overall placing 12th  

Gold:
U17 Male Champion Lifesaver Joe Jenkins
50+ Female Champion Lifesaver Deb Foote
55-59 Female 2km Beach Run Caroline Yarnell
60-64 Male 1km Beach Run Tim Platt
40+ Masters F Champion Lifesaver Deb Foote
240M Masters Boat North Steyne Pacemakers

Silver: 
U17 Male Champion Lifesaver Ewan Cooper-Frater
Open Male 2km Brach Run Kyle Wong
55-59 Male Surf Swim Ross Birch
60-64 Male Beach Sprint Paul Mathew

Bronze:
55-59 Male Board Rescue Joss Birch, Mark Neighbour
60-64 Male Tube Race Tim Platt
60-64 Male Beach Sprint Tim Platt

NSW State Championships
Overall Results:
Opens 27th place on 9 points
Masters 45th  place on 9 points

Silver:
U17 Male Champion Lifesaver Joe Jenkins
60-64 Male 1km Beach Run Tim Platt

Bronze:
U17 Male Champion Lifesaver Ewan Cooper-Frater
40+ Female Champion Lifesaver Deb Foote

Australian National ChampionshipsAustralian National Championships
Bronze:
U17 Male Champion Lifesaver Joe Jenkins

Club Championships
Age Category 1st 2nd 3rd
U15 Male Tom Hamilton
U17 Male Joe Jenkins Ewan Cooper-Frater Frazer Richardson
U19 Male Jeff Brown
Open Female Courtney Sloan
Open Male Joseph Mastrangelo Steven Mastrangelo Harry Hickey
Masters 35-39 Male Erik Newcomb
Masters 50-54 Female Joanne Cooper
Masters 55-59 Female Deb Foote Karen Webster
Masters 55-59 Male Ross Birch
Masters 60-64 Male Tim Platt
Masters 65+ Male Frank Traugott
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Patrol Hours 2017 - 2018Patrol Hours 2017 - 2018
Algar Harry 27.5
Altenburger Annika 32.25
Altenburger Michael 54.5
Anderson John 13.75
Auld Aaron 37
Auld Maya 32.75
Baker - Brown Bella 16
Basil-Jones Stephen 18.5
Bellenger James 4.25
Bennetts Sophie 26.5
Benns Matthew 24.25
Bernerius Michael 33.75
Birch Ross 9
Birley Joshua 4.25
Birley Matthew 4.25
Bogatez Luke 13.5
Bogatez Ryan 27
Bottomley Max 0
Bowhill Hugo 22.75
Brandson Kai 37.25
Brown Jeffrey 45.25
Burns Mark 43
Burrows Bernard 18
Butler Penelope 37.25
Butterworth Aaron 20.75
Button Colleen 40.5
Carlile Leo 39.5
Carrington Nicholas 52.5
Chapman Malcolm 46
Chapman Matthew 20
Chapman Rebecca 29.5
Cody Patrick 32.25
Collins Jenna 22.75
Collins William 4.25
Colvin Emily 18.25
Colwell Jonathan 14.25
Conners Jess 4.25
Conners Saige 22.25
Connor Sam 22.75
Cooper Geoff 18.5
Cooper Joanne 79.5
Cooper Lee 18.5
Cooper-Frater Ellis 9
Cooper-Frater Ewan 62
Cowell David 68.25
Cowell Oscar 43.5
Crofton Stuart 41
Donaldson Richard 35.75
Doughty Ella 38.5
Downey Ross 23.75
Downing Amy 22.25
Dupond Simon 18.5
Edwards Danielle 102
Everett Stella 4.25
Falzarano Ella 50.25
Falzarano Shaun 40.75
Falzarano Tonino 43.25

Farrell Evie 30.5
Farrell Sean 39
Flynn Daniel 43.5
Foote Deborah 36.75
Frazer Jodie 76.75
Garling Matthew 40.75
Gatherer Sarah 28
Gompes Danny 44
Gordon Luke 9.5
Grant Jennifer 29.5
Greenhalgh Nick 32.25
Griffith Cameron 18.25
Grundy Gretel 19
Hadley Thomas 40.75
Hair Isaac 6
Hamilton Thomas 4.75
Hanigan Jack 18.5
Hardiman Chelsea 4.25
Hare Mechelle 42.25
Hare-Boyd Tracey 82.25
Hare-Boyd Trae 64.5
Hassell James 21.25
Heffernan Caitlin 8.25
Henzlik Kirk 38
Herbert Jack 49.75
Herbert Peter 45.5
Hickey Harry 49.75
Hillier Abbey 38
Hillier Daniel 83.75
Hillier Emma 65.25
Hillier Ned 22
Hogan Indya 32.25
Holder Solomon 36.5
Housego Clare 34.75
Humphrey Robyn 0
Hurley Lara 40.75
Hurley Renee 12.75
Italiani Sara 8.5
Jackson Anna 26.5
Jackson Luke 36
Jacobs Alana 22.75
Jenkins Joseph 41.75
Jenkins Kyra 62.25
Job Shannon 34
Kasalo Mia 48.75
Kasalo Tiana 9.5
Kehoe Olivia 40.25
Kehoe Rory 19
Kelly John 38.25
Kinghorn Rachel 45.5
Kinghorn Sarah 45.5
Landrak Mary 41.25
Landsey Peter 11.5
Lavers Daniel 27.5
Lavers Margaret 24.75
Leafe Samuel 18.5
Leong Stephen 14

Londregan Georgia 31.25
Lynch Lauren 37
MacDonald Alice 14.25
Macintyre Rory 40.25
Macken Phillip 37.25
Macwilliam Sara 32.25
Maddox Mark 51
Mansfield Bruce 38.75
Marais Pieter 32.75
Mariotti Brian 41.75
Martin Ella 27.5
Martin Stephen 8.5
Mason Chloe 32.75
Mason Lucy 15
Mastrangelo Joe 46.5
Mastrangelo Joseph 22.75
Mastrangelo Steven 34.25
Matheson Hamish 0
Mathew Paul 62.75
Matruglio Antonio 34.25
Matruglio Samuel 25.25
McEwen Douglas 9
McGrath Megan 43.5
McSorley Oscar 30.25
Menzies Xavier 36
Michell Evan 29.25
Michell Sarah 35.5
Minihane Caroline 16.5
Mistry Nathan 15.75
Moloney Samuel 4.75
Monaghan Ingrid 37
Moore Alexander 9
Moore Billy 25.25
Muller Annika 25.25
Muller Yannick 31.75
Munro Kate 13.75
Neighbour Mark 9
Newcomb Erik 46
O Neill Shane 4.25
O'Connor Nellie 11.75
O'Neill Freya 18
O'Neill Shane 14.25
O'Shannassy Damian 0
Oxlade Claire 42.5
Parker Molly 44
Parren Isla 29
Parry Ben 29.25
Patrick Brett 30.25
Patterson Eloise 28
Peacock-Smith Maxine 13.75
Peake Malcolm 30.75
Perry Arabella 20.25
Perry Nicholas 21.75
Platt Chloe 42.75
Platt Edward 51.25
Polley Steven 17.5
Price Alec 23.25
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Purvis James 63.25
Purvis Jessica 34.25
Purvis Joseph 32.75
Quinn Georgia 32.75
Ramsey-Stewart Euan 24.25
Randell Ewan 4.25
Reid Christopher 7
Remedios Antonio 4.25
Richardson Frazer 50.25
Richardson Rose 73.5
Ritchie Ella 35.75
Roberts Sabine 16
Roberts Simon 0
Roberts Tia 0
Russell Sean 41.25
Ryberg Neale Lulubelle 25.5
Salier Alexandra 50.25
Sautelle Sam 4.25
Silberberg Angela 26.5
Silberberg Caroline 17.75
Silberberg Desmond 35.25
Silberberg Natalie 23.25
Silvy Kevin 32.25
Sloan Courtney 36
Sloan Oli 27.5
Solterbeck Nicholas 15.25
Stevens Mia 41.25
Stewart Christine 48.75
Stewart Mark 72.75
Stewart Mia 20.75
Stewart Van 8.5
Swift Dominic 32.75
Szewczak Robert 18
Takeda Riana 35.5
Talbert Oscar 40.25
Taylor Georgina 4.25
Tea Josiah 38

Tetley Sophie 51.25
Thelosen Niels 22
Tierney Lucy 18
Tinker Zeyna 37.5
Tompson Eliza 40.25
Townsend James 23.25
Traugott Frans 63.5
Trenear Hudson 49.5
Tressel Amelie 16.5
Tsinonis Dino 33
Turner Leonardo 29.75
Van der Pluijm Lachlan 32.25
Van Dyck George 19
Van Dyck Mark 7
Varano Peter 39.25
Vinson David 60.5
Wait Jessica 2
Wait Maxwell 23.75
Wait Thomas 33.75
Walsh Jason 4.25
Walton Cerys 18.5
Walton Maya 33
Watkins Emily 42.75
Watkins Samuel 37.75
Watt Jack 4.25
Webster Hebe 4.25
Webster Karen 41.75
Wessels Braydon 19
Wheen Joshua 33.75
White Edward 9
Wickham Lily 31
Wong Kyle 45.5
Woodward Chloe 37
Wotherspoon Joseph 4.75
Yandle Elliot 30.25
Yarnell Caroline 30.5
YoungYoung ChanningChanning 44



North Steyne was very successful at the 
2018 Sydney Northern Beaches Branch 
Awards. We received awards in 4 out 
of the 5 categories, and came in 2nd 
place as the Most Outstanding Club of 
Year Award. We also received the most 
outstanding club in Education for all the 
lifesaving awards our members received 
during the season.

Other awards received were:

Education Category
Assessor of the Year 
– Frank Traugott

Community Education Award 
– Youth Networking Program, 
led by Jo Cooper, along with 
representatives from Branch, 
Avalon SLSC and Narrabeen SLSC

Administration Category
Administrator of the Year
– Chris Gibbs Stewart

Member Services Category
Volunteer of the Year 
– David Cowell

Lifesaving Category
Patrol Captain of the Year – Tracey Hare-Boyd

Young Lifesaver of the Year – Trae Hare-Boyd

Gordon Lang, current North Steyne member and long time 
member of Palm Beach SLSC, also received a Branch Distinguished 
Service award.

All awards reflect the great team work at the Club and 
the dedication of so many volunteers. Thank you to 
all our members and Directors for your hard work and 
commitment to North Steyne. 

Other Awards and Recognition
During the season, our members were recognised for their 
outstanding contribution to North Steyne with the following 
services awards:

David Cowell  

Northern Beaches Australia Day Awards for his Outstanding 
Community Service

Surf Life Saving Sydney Northern Beaches with Volunteer of the 
Year 

The NSW Centre for Volunteering Sydney North Volunteer 

State finalist for SLSNSW and the Centre for Volunteering

Tracey Hare-Boyd

Northern Beaches Australia Day Awards for her Outstanding 
Community Service 

Finalist for the Rotary Inspirational Women's award 

Tracey Hare-Boyd and Trae Hare-Boyd awarded branch and state 
Rescue of Month for January 2018

Paul Mathew, Tim Platt and Frank Traugott - Australian Honours 
National Medal for Service 
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Notice is hereby given that the One Hundredth and Eleventh Annual General Meeting of the North Steyne Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc. will be held at the Clubhouse, North Steyne on Sunday 22 July 2018 commencing at 11:00am.

AGENDA

1. Welcome by the President

2. Apologies

3. A minutes silence in tribute to the recent loss of Members and friends within the surf lifesaving community

4. Reading and approval of the Minutes for the 110th Annual General Meeting, 23 July 2017

5. Presentation and approval of the 111th Annual Report and Financial Statements

6. Notice of motion: - “That Trevor Lane be elected to Life Membership.”

Proposed: Jack SutherlandSeconded: Ron Morton 

7. Notice of motion: - “That Tracey Hare-Boyd be elected to Life Membership.”

Proposed: Joe Mastrangelo Seconded: Lee Cooper 

8. Presentation of Awards and Plaques and Future Fund Scholarships

9. Election and appointment of the following positions for the 2018/19 season:

a. Directors (11) and Assistant Directors (9)

b. Judiciary Panel (4)

c. Life Membership and Honours Panel (4) 

d. Rules Panel  (4) 

e. Patrons,  Trustees and Auditor

10. General business (written advice required one week prior to meeting)

Nominations for Directors, Assistant Directors, Panels, Patrons and Trustees will be accepted in writing by the Secretary 
up until 11am on Sunday 15 July 2018. Nomination forms are available from North Steyne’s Administration Manager 
(admin@northsteyneslsc.com.au) and the Club’s website.

Members entitled to vote and stand for office are determined in Part 2 Section 5 of the North Steyne SLSC Constitution, 
consistent with SLSA Regulation 6.4 (to source - search SLSA Regulation 6.4 and download the PDF). Members entitled to 
vote under the Regulation are Active members, Active Reserve members, Long Service members and Life Members who 
are financial members of the Club.

Christine Gibbs Stewart

Secretary North Steyne SLSC

0409 031 645
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I have great pleasure in 
presenting the 2018 Financial 
Report for the North Steyne 
Surf Life Saving Club. 

Most areas of revenue 
improved on the level of the 
previous season, with total 
revenue increasing from 
$291,679 to $365,889.  There 
were two major contributors 
to this increase. The first 
being the receipt of the 
$45,000 grant from the NSW 

Government’s Community Building Partnership Program 
(CBPP Grant).  The other being an increase in fundraising 
activities of $27,241 (mainly due to the 110 year anniversary 
dinner and the associated wine fundraiser).  Total 
expenditure increased from $258,815 to $326,643.  There 
were four major contributors to the increase.  They were 
the expenditure of the CBPP grant, the costs of the 110 year 
anniversary dinner and wine fundraiser, and an increase in 
competition costs.

The strong financial results enabled the Board to approve 
total allocations to the Building Fund of $15,663 and $8,263 
to the Future Fund.   The net profit after the Special Purpose 
Fund allocations was $39,246 ($32,864 last season).

I would like to acknowledge our major sponsors and 
donations:
•	 The Federal Department for Infrastructure Stronger 

Communities Grant and Beach Safety Equipment Fund
•	 The NSW Government Department of Sports and 

Recreation Department and the Surf Club Facility 
•	 The NSW Government’s Community Building Partnership 

Program
•	 The Northern Beaches Council Patrol Incentive Scheme 

Surf Life Saving NSW and the Surf Life Saving Foundation 
•	 Surf Life Saving Australia
•	 Surf Life Saving Sydney North Beaches
•	 Nine Network Australia 
•	 Balgowlah RSL 
•	 Stone Real Estate Manly
•	 Lions club of Manly
•	 Narrabeen Sports Physio

In addition, I would like to recognise the:
•	 generous support of the club members and the general 

public for the purchase of tickets to the 110 year 
anniversary dinner, the wine fundraiser and the raffle;

•	 NSW Government’s Department of Justice for the 
ongoing funding of state-wide operation, which benefits 
all members through the co-operative agreement; and

•	 Emergency Volunteer Support Scheme (EVSS) which is 
funded through the National Partnership Agreement 
on Natural Disaster Resilience between the NSW and 
Commonwealth Governments for Apply Advanced 
Resuscitation Techniques equipment;

•	 National Sponsors of Surf Life Saving Australia:
 ▪ DHL is a National Major Partner of Surf Life Saving, 

providing significant uniform sponsorship to enable 
uniforms to be provided free of charge to patrolling 
lifesavers;

 ▪ Westpac is a National Major Partner of Surf Life 
Saving providing significant sponsorship towards the 
Westpac Lifesaver Rescue Helicopter Service, the 
oldest civilian search  and rescue service in Australia;
ClubsNSW for their support of the Surf Life Saving 
NSW State Championships.

•	 Major Branch Sponsors
 ▪ Unilever ( Streets Ice Cream and Lipton Ice Tea), Dee 

Why RSL Club, Bill Buckle Auto Group, URM, Westfield 
Warringah Mall, Cancer Institute NSW, RFi Group and 
minor sponsors Thredbo, Dematic, Bennett Boards, 
BRP, Manly Daily, Beach Club Collaroy

I would also like to acknowledge the support of all the 
Board, Trevor Lane (the auditor), Audrey Bruen (the club’s 
administrator), and a large number of members that have 
supported me during the year.

Tony Falzarano
Treasurer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 May 2018 

Income 
Refer to 

notes to the 
accounts: 2018 2017 

Operating income   114,040 114,635 
Donations & sponsorship    48,846  43,522 
Grants  96,104   60,234 
Fundraising activities 9 95,447    68,206 
Interest received   11,452      5,082 
Total income 10  365,889  291,679 
Expenses     
Operating expenses  212,564 155,473 
Depreciation and amortisation 8 26,537   41,864 
Fundraising activities 9 63,196   34,763 
Scholarships 7 3,000     3,000 
Special purpose fund allocations 7 21,346   23,715 
Total expenses 10  326,643 258,815 
Profit (loss) for the year 10 39,246   32,864 

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 May 2018 should be 
read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 May 2018
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 May 2018 

Current assets 
Refer to notes 

to the 
accounts: 2018 2017 

Cash and cash equivalents 6 533,897 452,396 
Trade debtors   22,925 16,904 
Inventory   29,289 29,974 
Total current assets   586,111 499,274 
Non-current assets     
Property, plant and equipment 8 567,324 564,733 
Less: accumulated depreciation 8 (523,170)     (496,634) 
Total non-current assets   44,154 68,099 
Total assets   630,264 567,373 
Current Liabilities     
Trade creditors and accruals   13,497 11,445 
Total current liabilities   13,497 11,445 
Total liabilities   13,497 11,445 
Net assets   616,767 555,928 
Accumulated funds     
Special purpose funds 7 203,506 182,160 
Retained earnings    373,768 340,904 
Prior year adjustment    247 -   
Current year earnings   39,246 32,864 
Total accumulated earnings   616,767 555,928 

 

Note: The statement of financial position for the year ended 31 May 2018 should be read in 
conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 

 

  

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 May 2018 
Cash flows from operating activities Refer to notes 

to the accounts: 2018 2017 
Cash receipts in the course of operations   348,664 289,854 
Cash payments in the course of operations   (276,024) (184,756) 
Net cash flow from operating activities  11 72,640 105,098 
Cash flows from investing activities      
Payment for plant and equipment   (2,591) (8,636) 
Interest received    11,452 5,082 
Net cash flow from investing activities   8,861 (3,554) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash flow   81,501 101,544 
Cash at beginning of the year   452,396 350,852 
Cash at the end of the year 6 533,897 452,396 
Net change in cash held   81,501 101,544 

Note: The statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 May 2018 should be read in 
conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 May 2018 
Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
The following explains the significant accounting policies that have been adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, such accounting policies were 
also adopted in the corresponding reporting period. 
 

General 
 

The financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the 
financial report preparation requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission and Charitable Fundraising Act. The board has determined that the club is not a 
reporting entity. North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc is a not-for-profit entity for the purpose 
of preparing the financial statements. 
 
The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Division 60 
of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the following specific 
accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated, 
have been adopted in the preparation of this report. 
 
Basis of accounting 
 
The statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historic costs and 
do not take into account changing money values, or, except where stated, current valuations 
of non-current assets. 
 
Registration fees 
 
All registration fees are bought to account in the year to which they apply as and when 
received from the members. The capitation fees, due to Surf Life Saving New South Wales 
Inc and Sydney Northern Beaches Surf Life Saving, are remitted as and when invoiced and 
shown as a separate expenditure item. 
 
Marketing and sponsorship income 
 
Marketing & sponsorship income is recognised when amounts are received or receivable. 
 
Cash at bank 
 
Cash at bank and term deposits represents monies deposited with the Commonwealth Bank 
of Australia and Bank of Queensland.  
 
Comparative figure 
 
When required by the accounting standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to 
conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year. No attempt has been made 
to reclassify or reanalyse prior years’ expenses. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories have been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
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Property, plant and equipment 
 

i. Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, independent of directors’ valuations. 
All assets are depreciated over their useful life 

 
ii. Over the years, the club has collected considerable memorabilia. In the past this 

memorabilia has been recorded at a nominal value and subsequently fully depreciated to 
zero hence the financial accounts do not ascribe any value to memorabilia assets 

 
iii. The cost of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 

profit and loss as incurred 
 

iv. Net depreciation and amortisation rates used for each major class of asset are: 
 

Asset class Depreciation % 
Bar equipment 15.00% 
BBQ equipment 33.33% 
Boards and skis 33.33% 
Gymnasium 
equipment 10.00% 

IRB & motors 20.00% 
IT equipment and 
televisions 33.33% 

Lifesaving 
equipment 25.00% 

Lockers 10.00% 
Office fit-out 10.00% 
Surfboats and oars 16.67% 

 
Note 2 – Related parties 
 
Transactions with committee members or their committee-member related entity occurred within 
a normal member or supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable that those 
which it is reasonable to expect that the entity would have adopted if dealing with the committee 
member or their committee-member at arms-length in the same circumstance. 
 
Note 3 – Segment information 
 
The club derives revenue primarily from its members, sponsors and fundraising activities to 
support its role in providing beach life saving services and operations. The clubs activities are 
principally carried out at North Steyne Beach, located in NSW. 
 
Note 4 – Subsequent events 
 
There has not been any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial 
year that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the club, the 
results of those operations or the state of affairs of the club in the next financial year. Similar to 
last year, during this financial year the amalgamation of the former Manly Council with the former 
Warringah and Pittwater Councils to form a new Northern Beaches Council further progressed. 
We have been informed  that Northern Beaches Council funding to North Steyne for the next 
season, under our patrol agreement, will be on similar terms and levels as for this past season. 
. 
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Note 5 – NSW Government grant for club facilities upgrades 
 
The club received an amount of $45,000 during the year from the 2014 NSW Government 
Community Building Partnership Program. 
 
The club is yet to receive its $130,000 for the balcony replacement, repairs for safety, security 
and maintenance through the 2017 NSW Government’s Surf Club Facility Development 
Program. This project is being managed by the Northern Beaches Council and they have 
engaged an engineer to prepare engineering plans for the balcony replacement works.  Northern 
Beaches Council and North Steyne are currently reviewing quotations received from interested 
builders through an open process from 11 April until 3 May 2018. 

Note 6 – Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows, is reconciled to 
the related item in the statement of financial positions. It includes both cash at hand and monies 
at bank and represented here: 
 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 
  2018 2017 
Cash on hand 727  850  
Cash at bank 97,120 26,546 
Bank term deposit 436,050 425,000 
Account balance 533,897 452,396 

 
7 – Special purpose funds 
 
The Future Fund had its origins through donations and bequests made to the club. Its purpose is 
to provide a future means of funding and promoting surf lifesaving including purchases of 
lifesaving equipment and endeavours designed to encourage members in gaining surf lifesaving 
skills.  The Building Fun receives donations and grants specifically for club building projects. 
 

Reconciliation of special purpose funds (including Building Fund) 
  2018 2017 
Opening balance 182,160  158,445  
Contributions made in year 19,436 

 
19,292 

 
Interest adjustment for prior year - 4,192 
Interest earned 4,910 3,231 
Expenditure (3,000) (3,000) 
Account balance 203,506 182,160 
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Note 8 – Property, plant and equipment 
 

Asset and depreciation reconciliation 

Assets 
   Boards & 

skis 
   Furniture 
& fittings    Gym 

   IRB & 
motors    IT 

Life 
saving  

Surfboats 
& trailers Total 

Prior year 
total 

Balance - 1st 
June 2017 145,327 129,315 41,992 79,563 4,830 67,962 95,744 564,733 556,097 

Additions 2,591       2,591 8,636 
Total asset 
balance - 31st 
May 2018 147,918 129,315 41,992 79,563 4,830 67,962 95,744 567,324 564,733 

Depreciation                   
Balance - 1st 
June 2017 (137,287) (108,359) (35,783) (71,819) (2,709) (61,992) (78,684) (496,6334) (454,770) 

Depreciation 2,625 6,899 1,813 5,046 1,778 1,916 6,460 26,537 (41,864) 
Balance - 31st 
May 2018 (139,912) (115,258) (37,596) (76,865) (4,487) (63,908) (85,144) (523,170) (496,634) 
Net asset 
balance - 31st 
May 2018 8,006 14,057 4,396 2,698 343 4,054 10,600 44,154 68,099 

 
 
Note 9 – Fundraising statement for the year ended 31 May 2018 
 
Funds were provided through the following activities and events: 
 

Type of fundraising Income Expenses 
Net surplus/ 
(loss) 2018 

Prior year 
total 

Donations and sponsorships 48,846 - 48,846 47,522 
BBQ 43,379 23,735 19,644 14,056 
Bar 8,723 7,429 1,294 3,935 
Ocean swim 18,464 10,198 8,266 10,595 
110 anniversary Dinner 11,991 15,245  (3,254) - 
Wine Fundraiser 10,145 6,589 3,556 - 
Raffles 2,744 - 2,744 4,857 
Total 144,292 63,196 81,096 80,965 

 
Income from fundraising was applied to the following club functions and activities: 
 

Application of fundraising income during year Amount 
Lifesaving 22,186 
Training & Education 7,291 
Coaching and competition 31,502 
Special Needs Nipper 8,464 
Utilities  11,653 
Total 81,096 
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Note 10 – Detailed income and expenditure statement 

 
Income and expenditure statement 2018 2017 
Income     
Membership 66,763 62,247 
Fundraising activities (note 9) 95,446 68,206 
Donations and sponsorship (note 9) 48,846 47,522 
Grants 96,104 56,234 
Clothing and merchandise sales 13,917 13,748 
Rental income 22,047 24,497 
Interest 11,452 5,082 
Competition 3,699 1,990 
Training and education 7,615 12,155 
Total income 365,889 291,679 
Expense   
Administration 24,069 25,913 
Capitation 17,568 15,556 
Fundraising activities (note 9) 63,196 34,763 
Club facilities upgrades  34,571 1,984 
Ripper Nippers 8,464 3,139 
Clothing* 10,432 20,428 
Depreciation & amortisation 26,537 41,864 
Employee costs 30,552 22,321 
Utilities 11,653 10,920 
Insurance 4,241 6,626 
Advertising 1,649 2,879 
Competition 39,888 22,040 
Education 7,291 8,663 
Lifesaving 22,186 15,004 
Special purpose fund 21,346 23,715 
Scholarships 3,000 3,000 
Total expenses 326,643 258,815 
Profit/(Loss) for the year 39,246 32,864 

 
* Clothing expense in 2017 included a write down of stock of $11,240 for out-dated and slow-moving 

items. 
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Note 11 – Cash flow information 
 
Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities with net profit/(loss) 
 
 2018 2017 
Profit/(loss) for the year 

Prior year adjustment 

Add back non-cash items 

Depreciation & amortisation 

Write of stock 

Special funds movement 

39,246  

247 

 

26,537 

- 

21,346 

32,864  

 

 

41,864 

11,240 

23,715 

Sub-total 

Less interest received and which are shown 
separately in cash flows from investing activities 

87,376 

(11,452) 

109,683 

(5,082) 

Cash flow before movement in trade debtors, 
inventory and trade creditors  

Movement in 

Trade debtors – decrease/(increase) 

Inventory – decrease/(increase) 

Trade creditors – increase/(decrease) 

75,924 
 

 

(6,021) 

685 

2,052 

104,601 
 

 

3,258 

4,589 

(7,350) 

Net cash flow from operating activities 72,640 105,098 
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Financial Members 2017 - 2018
Shaun Falzarano
Tonino Falzarano
Daniel Flynn
Jodie Frazer
Matthew Garling
Danny Gompes
Luke Gordon
Nick Greenhalgh
Isaac Hair
Mechelle Hare
Tracey Hare-Boyd
James Hassell
Chris Haughton
Kirk Henzlik
Harry Hickey
Daniel Hillier
Thibaut Jacques
Achille Irissou
Sara Italiani
Alana Jacobs
Kyra Jenkins
John Kelly
Sarah Lally
Margaret Lavers
Stephen Leong
Rory Macintyre
Phillip Macken
Sara Macwilliam
Mark Maddox
Bruce Mansfield
Brian Mariotti
Lucy Mason
Joe Mastrangelo
Joseph Mastrangelo
Steven Mastrangelo
Hamish Matheson
Louise Mavor
Kate Michell
Anthony Michell
Benjamin Neighbour
Erik Newcomb
Shane O Neill
Shane O'Neill
Claire Oxlade
Molly Parker
Ben Parry
Brett Patrick
Arabella Perry
Nicholas Perry
Fernando Pinto

LIFE MEMBER 
Keith Abraham
Bernard Burrows
Jonathan Colwell
Keith Crampton
Paul Day
Simon Fry
Shan Grose
Paul Hull
Paul Mathew
Arthur McCarroll
Ronald Morton
Damian O'Shannassy
Garry O'Sullivan
Neil Purcell
Nicholas Roelvink
Peter St John
Colin Stanford
John Sutherland

HONORARY MEMBER
Tony Abbott MHR
Audrey Bruen
Jean Hay
David Hay
Trevor Lane
Andrew Taylor

ACTIVE SENIOR 
Annika Altenburger
Michael Altenburger
Stephen Basil-Jones
Matthew Benns
Michael Bernerius
Ryan Bogatez
Jeffrey Brown
Mark Burns
Aaron Butterworth
Colleen Button
Nicholas Carrington
Malcolm Chapman
Matthew Chapman
Rebecca Chapman
Sam Connor
Joanne Cooper
Ellis Cooper-Frater
David Cowell
Stuart Crofton
Danielle Edwards
Ella Falzarano

Chloe Platt
Edward Platt
Steven Polley
James Purvis
Euan Ramsey-Stewart
Salvador Ribeiro
Simon Roberts
Sam Sautelle
Angela Silberberg
Desmond Silberberg
Kevin Silvy
Courtney Sloan
Christine Stewart
Mark Stewart
Van Stewart
Robert Szewczak
Evan Tancred
Niels Thelosen
Oliver Thiel
Chris Thomas
Rhys Thompson
Gemma Tierney
Lucy Tierney
Zeyna Tinker
James Townsend
Frans Traugott
Hudson Trenear
David Unicomb
George Van Dyck
Mark Van Dyck
David Vinson
Thomas Wait
Jason Walsh
Hebe Webster

JUNIOR ACTIVE CADETS
(15-18 YEARS) 
JJacob Adams
Harry Algar
Aaron Auld
Maya Auld
Sophie Bennetts
Luke Bogatez
Hugo Bowhill
Kai Brandson
Lachlan Brown
Penelope Butler
Leo Carlile
Jake Carr
Gerard Cassegrain

Patrick Cody
Jenna Collins
Emily Colvin
Saige Conners
Sebastian Cooper
Ewan Cooper-Frater
Oscar Cowell
Matthew de Ambrosis
Ella Doughty
Amy Downing
Simon Dupond
Stella Everett
Sean Farrell
William Franklin
Mitchell Frawley
James Garnsey
Jennifer Grant
Cameron Griffith
Gretel Grundy
Thomas Hadley
Jack Hanigan
Chelsea Hardiman
Trae Hare-Boyd
Matthew Hickey
Abbey Hillier
Emma Hillier
Indya Hogan
Solomon Holder
Lara Hurley
Renee Hurley
Anna Jackson
Luke Jackson
Joseph Jenkins
Mia Kasalo
Joshua Keenan
Olivia Kehoe
Thomas Kennedy
Sarah Kinghorn
Mary Landrak
Daniel Lavers
Samuel Leafe
Georgia Londregan
Lauren Lynch
Alice MacDonald
Hamish MacDonald
Ella Martin
Antonio Matruglio
Megan McGrath
Finn McKelvey
Oscar McSorley
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Xavier Menzies
Evan Michell
Nathan Mistry
Samuel Moloney
Ingrid Monaghan
Alexander Moore
Billy Moore
Yannick Muller
Sean O'Brien
Freya O'Neill
James Osborne
Isla Parren
Joel Pettit
Henry Pidcock
Alec Price
Miles Prosser
Jessica Purvis
Joseph Purvis
Georgia Quinn
Frazer Richardson
Rose Richardson
Ella Ritchie
Tia Roberts
Sean Russell
Marcus Shehade
Caroline Silberberg
Oli Sloan
Nicholas Solterbeck
Charles Stack
Mia Stewart
Dominic Swift
Riana Takeda
Oscar Talbert
Jon Taylor
Josiah Tea
Sophie Tetley
Eliza Tompson
Dino Tsinonis
Flynn Twomey
Luke Tyler
Lachlan Van der Pluijm
Jessica Wait
Maxwell Wait
Maya Walton
Emily Watkins
Samuel Watkins
Jack Watt
Braydon Wessels
Nathan Weston
Joshua Wheen
Lily Wickham
Ky Williamson
Isabel Witty
Chloe Woodward

Robert Worner
Joseph Wotherspoon
Karen Webster
Edward White
Rob Wilde
Gregory Windsham
Kyle Wong
Andrew Woodhead
Elliot Yandle
Caroline Yarnell
David Richardson
Korina Richmond
Sally Roberts
William Robinson
David Romero
Susie Rutherford
Michelle Sas
Michael Shea
Pauline Shuttleworth
Matthew Springate
Zoe Starkey
Andre Steyn
Pam Sussman
Bernat Szabo
Laszlo Szabo
Lex Tall
Rommel Taradena
Melanie Teixeira
Benjamin Thatcher
Sophie Thelosen
Chris Thomas
David Tierney
Scott Turner
Leo Tyndall
Regina Ugarte
Roger van de Zande
Carolina van Selm
Gloria Walker
Kristie Walker
Patrick Walker
Shani Walton
Stephen Walton
Renae Warne
David Watkins
Nina Webster
Kayleigh West
Rhys Whittaker
Geoff Williams
David Wooder
Caelin Worthington
Brent Yatawara
Jocelyn Yem
Nasise Yonas
Anne-Maree Zofrea

CADETS (13-15 YEARS) 
Bella Baker - Brown
James Bellenger
Joshua Birley
Matthew Birley
Max Bottomley
William Collins
Jess Conners
Samuel Cowell
Ross Downey
Max Durrant
Thomas Ell
Evie Farrell
Sarah Gatherer
Thomas Hamilton
Caitlin Heffernan
Jack Herbert
Peter Herbert
Ned Hillier
Macgregor House
Clare Housego
Tiana Kasalo
Rory Kehoe
Rachel Kinghorn
Ciaran Lund
Jett Mansfield
Pieter Marais
Stephen Martin
Chloe Mason
Samuel Matruglio
Sarah Michell
Caroline Minihane
Annika Muller
Nellie O'Connor
Jodie O'Neill
Eloise Patterson
Ewan Randell
Antonio Remedios
Sabine Roberts
Lulubelle Ryberg Neale
Natalie Silberberg
Mia Stevens
Lachlan Swinfield
Georgina Taylor
Amelie Tressel
Leonardo Turner
Alexander Uliana
Peter Varano
Cerys Walton
Channing Young

ACTIVE RESERVE 
Geoff Cooper
Lee Cooper

Richard Donaldson
Douglas McEwen
Kate Munro
Maxine Peacock-Smith
Malcolm Peake
Christopher Reid
Kate Reid

LONG SERVICE 
JJohn Anderson
Ross Birch
Creagh Bouttell
Deborah Foote
Christopher Fry
Timothy Fry
John Huijsen
Robyn Humphrey
Shannon Job
Peter Landsey
Gordon Lang
Timothy Leonard
William McLerie
Todd Moore
Mark Neighbour
William O'Brien
Clem O'Grady
Anthony Purcell
Peter Rogers
Alexandra Salier
Paul Thomson
Adam Traugott
Terence Wixon

AWARD MEMBER
Chris Dooley
Delia Farrell
Scott Farrell
Michael Jenkins
Geoffrey Kinghorn
Derek Minihane
Leslie Wait

ASSOCIATE / GENERAL 
Ahmed Aboushabana
Paul Addison
Jonathan Algar
Michael Allen
Belinda Anderson
Stuart Anderson
Kim Asplin
Jackson Austin
Tim Behrens
Peter Binns
Nigel Blunden
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Richard Donaldson
Douglas McEwen
Kate Munro
Maxine Peacock-Smith
Malcolm Peake
Christopher Reid
Kate Reid

LONG SERVICE 
JJohn Anderson
Ross Birch
Creagh Bouttell
Deborah Foote
Christopher Fry
Timothy Fry
John Huijsen
Robyn Humphrey
Shannon Job
Peter Landsey
Gordon Lang
Timothy Leonard
William McLerie
Todd Moore
Mark Neighbour
William O'Brien
Clem O'Grady
Anthony Purcell
Peter Rogers
Alexandra Salier
Paul Thomson
Adam Traugott
Terence Wixon

AWARD MEMBER
Chris Dooley
Delia Farrell
Scott Farrell
Michael Jenkins
Geoffrey Kinghorn
Derek Minihane
Leslie Wait

ASSOCIATE / GENERAL 
Ahmed Aboushabana
Paul Addison
Jonathan Algar
Michael Allen
Belinda Anderson
Stuart Anderson
Kim Asplin
Jackson Austin
Tim Behrens
Peter Binns
Nigel Blunden

Ray Bortolussi
Roger Brant
Bas Breure
Matt Brocklehurst
David Brooks
Hillary Burrows
Nikki Butt
George Calligeros
Barbara Campos
Paul Case
Sally Cawthorne
Danny Centen
Sylvia Chen
Thomas Chris
Dan Clark
Darren Clark
John Clarson
John Cole
Kate Conners
Catie Conole
Cecily Conroy
Edward Corlett
Janell Cowell
Mark Crafar
Yoan Creamer
Sarah Crennan
Lachlan Cummins
Louise Cummins
George Cunma
Tom Davidson
Kris De Laine
Pierre De Laine
Pamela Dobrovska
Patricia Downey
Jennifer Dudek
Sanh Duong
Antony Dutton
Amy Eaton
Brett Edwards
Sarkis Elia
Mark Ellis
Jemma Evans
Sarah Falzarano
Clare Fenwick
Laura Ficorilli
Christina Fielding
Geoff Fielding
Giselle Firme
Matthew Fisk
Andrew Foord
Peter Frater
Sergio Garcia
Grant Garforth
Susan Gatherer

Dan Gibbeson
Patrick Giles-Jones
Shiho Giles-Jones
Bevan Gillam
Maria Gradin
John Gray
Raymond Grudic
Susan Gurnett
Katrina Guthrie
Amy Gye
Yana Haluska
Brad Hassack
Richard Heath
Ann Heffernan
Robin Herbert
Cath Hillier
Scott Home
David Howe
Ralph Hudson
Penelope Huisman
Kahori Inoue
Meredyth Irvine
Darrin James
Faye James
Diana Jenkins
Judith Jenkins
Llewellyn Jenkins
Alain Junkermann
Marko Kasalo
Orla Keane
Kevin Kehoe
Hans Kerkhoven
Rebecca Ketelhohn
Lisa Kinghorn
Morten Laerkholm
Nicola Lasorsa
Timothy Laurence
Yaneky Leite
Rod Lester
Bart Lievens
Sarah Lind
Frances Lipman
Helen Lofthouse
Kate Lovelace
Christopher Low
Fernando Lulli
Jason Lund
Vicky Magklis
Ronan Maguire
David Maisey
Heloise Marais
Robert Marlin
Barry Mason
Lincoln Mason

Emily Mccarthy
Christopher McHutchison
Kate McIntosh
Roseanne McKinnon
Michael McShane
Sarah Meaney
Zoe Mildwater
Michael Minassian
elizaberth mistry
Kiran Mistry
Jeff Morris
Emma Jane Morton
Henning Muller
Tanja Muller
Scott Murphy
Stephen Murphy
Cliff Neale
Jack Neighbour
Wayne Neville
Andrew O'Farrell
Damon O'Farrell
Irene O'Leary
Mark Olivier
Mark Osborne
Alex Panagakis
Nicola Parren
Shaun Parren
Alastair Pennie
Malin Persson
Dianne Phillips
Patrick Phillips
Alexander Phipps
Donna Pinto
David Port
Peter Priestley
Megan Pusterla
Karen Ratcliffe
 
JUNIOR MEMBERS 
NIPPERS U6 
Mia Baumann
Eduardo Cervantes
Patrick Foord
Evelyn Lulli
Felix McCarthy
Holly Mildwater
Flori Pennie

NIPPERS U7 
Max Addison
Joshua Bignold
Addison Burrows
Solara Butt
Ethan Calligeros

Hugo Carolin
Sophie Cawthorne
Leo Clark
Payton Clark
Josephine Clarson
Joel Colwell
Liam Creamer
Millicent Crofton
Lachlan Cummins
Carson Cunma
Sebastian de la Rica Gye
Bronte De Laine
Alexandra Dyball
Jack Egerton
Elias Elia
Camilla Ellis
Harrison Evans
Casey Fielding
William Fisk
Leela Foord
Christian Gillam
Sienna Hier
Loren Hoogenboom
Pablo James
Tristan Junkermann
Isabella Lasorsa
Elsie Olivier
Ruby Phillips
Aria Pinto
Evanna Port
Cillian Ruane
Amelie Ryan
Bailey Shea
Benji Thomas
Marlee White
Levi Wills
Ava Worthington
 
NIPPERS U8 
Noah Aboushabana
Mia Allen
Isaac Anderson
Ethan Au Yeung
Magdalena Aylwin
Milla Behrens
Byroy Burlovich
Catherine Bye
Benjamin Case
Fleur Conole
Charlie Conroy
Lily Egan
Mia Falzarano
Darcey Finlay
Leo Fogel
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Luc Garcia Dudek
Olle Gradin
Emma Greenhalgh
Jasmine Greenhalgh
Joshua Gurnett
Amelie Guthrie
Elisabeth Hamilton
Zoe Hanson
Francesca Heath
Ilona Heath
Elena Howe
Inigo Jenkins
Charlie Kehoe
Anton Lievens
Michael Love
Alana Lulli
Ciara Maguire
Harper Maisey
Henry Marlin
Domenica Mason
Zara McAllan-Yem
Caleb Meaney
Lawson Morris-Warne
Jessica Osborne
Lucas Panagakis
Ludvig Persson
Luca Pinto
James Priestley
Hannah Sentance
Sam Stephenson
Gabby Thomas
Lyon Tyndall
Eleanor Whittaker
Conor Williams
Jacob Yatawara

NIPPERS U9 
Laerkholm Arthur
Springate Bailey
James Blunden
Kody Burrows
Lyla Butler
James Calligeros
Leo Charkos
Orla Cole
Dillon Corlett
Thomas Crofton
Lachlan Dutton
Ryan Eaton
James Fielding
Liam Giles-Jones
Nicholas Gillam
Danny Gordon
Georgia Gray

Turner Hassack
Logan Home
Maja Johnander
Duco Kerkhoven
Floris Kerkhoven
William Leite
Leo Mason
Mia Million
Ella Minassian
Emma Nielsen
Gemma O'Farrell
Ted Olivier
Sienna Omondi
Rory Pennie
Lias Edoard Pipi
Jordan Ramirez
Leo Steyn
Roman Taradena
Lukas Townsin-Brant
Jackson Woodward

NIPPERS U10
Kiki Breure
Charlie Colwell
Sebastian Conole
Rafael Crafar
Amelia De Laine
Sophie Dyball
Maisie-Belle Finlay
Charlotte Fisk
Mateo Garcia Dudek
Leo Gibbeson
Eva Haughton
Bonnie Hill
Liam Hoh
Mia James
Alana Kasalo
Sophie Lasorsa
Pareeseh Mahar
Felix McAllan-Yem
Olive McCarthy
Oisin Morris
Billie O'Brien
Noah O'Keefe
Toby Priestley
Jessi Robb
Beanon Ruane
Ambra Serventi
Arran Shea
Zoe Smith
Marisa Talia
Josh Turner
Keet Van de Zande
Charlotte Walker
Joshua Wilton-McWilliam

NIPPERS U11
Carla Anderson
Amelia Aylwin
Harper Cole
Oliver Crofton
Pearl Fogel
Sophie Giles-Jones
Charlie Gordon
Eliza Gray
Isabella Hier
Dara Kehoe
Lode Lievens
Ruben Marais
Bianca Marlin
Molly McShane
Nikol Misiura
Isabella Nielsen
Kaea Phillips
Daisy Ratcliffe
Darby Springate
Billie Thatcher
Daniel Unicomb
Harry Wilde
Brendan Williams
Dann Wilson

NIPPERS U12 
Jessica Allen
Jack Binns
Matilda Binns
Larnach Black
Sam Blunden
Emma Bortolussi
Isabelle Breure
Clara Brocklehurst
Liam Cimino
Marley Fenwick
James Fisk
Lachlan Gray
Neneh Hanson
Geoffrey Herbert
Nina Hoh
Thomas Hudson
Andrew Kinghorn
Kian Low
Emmett Mariotti
Helena McAllan-Yem
Jasper McCarthy
Amelie McHutchison
Hayden Mistry
Emilie Morris
Ciaran Murphy

Scarlett O'Farrell
Alec Parren
Kahlen Robb
Alexandra Smith
Annelore Thelosen
Eva Tompson
Oskar Townsin-Brant
Lou Van de Zande
Oliver Whittaker

NIPPERS U13 
Hugh Davidson
Tyron Lind
Sophia Lupton
Christophe Magklis
Greer Mason
Jessica Mistry
Lukas Muller
Kate Neville
Sofia Serventi
Casey Shea
James Toohey
Blake Wilson
Zane Zofrea

NIPPERS U14 
Findlay Black
Olivia Bortolussi
Gracie Bottomley
Ethan Brocklehurst
Cameron Davidson
Isabella Guthrie
Paris Laliotis
India Long
Jack Mair
Bridie Murphy
Liselotte Thelosen
Natalya Tyler
Jasmine Unicomb
Oscar Vasilaras
Fraser Wait
Cooper Wilson
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Year Event Names
1908-09 Premiers (R & R) R McKelvey, C Bell, G Millar, J Vernon, O Merrett, LV Hind, A Currie
1909-10 Premiers (R & R) A Currie, J Vernon, O Merrett, L Hind, G Millar, H Watson, C Bell
1910-11 Premiers (R & R) A Currie, J Vernon, O Merrett, L Hind, G Millar, H Watson, C Bell
1919-20 Premiers (R & R) L Hind, A Davis, A Hodge, W Keith, H Middleton, E Whitehead

Open Belt F Lough
1920-21 Premiers (R & R) L Hind, H Evans, A Davis, N Lister, E Whitehead, H Middleton

Open Boat E Wigney, F Dargan, G Moat, A Stewart, A Thorn
Beach Sprint J Waterer

1921-22 Open Boat H Evans, F Dargan, G Moat, A Stewart, A Thorn
Open Surf AL Davis
Resuscitation R Kidman, G Riddington

1922-23 Junior Surf R Nicholls
1923-24 Junior Surf D Thompson

Open Boat H Evans, E Saunders, P Mazlin, O Stephenson, F Stewart
Beach Sprint J Waterer
Beach Relay J Waterer, H Gorfin, C Whitehead, E Whitehead

1925-26 Open Boat H Evans, S Kelly, G Moat, P Mazlin, O Stephenson
Junior Boat S Kelly, A Wise, E Ireland, H Morgan, L Waterer

1926-27 Premiers (R & R) G Bland, D Thompson, O Ryan, G Boulton, D Riddington, E Whitehead
Open Boat H Evans, S Kelly, P Mazelin, G Moat, F Bridges

1928-29 Open Boat H Evans, S Kelly, G Moat, F Bridges, F Vaughan
1929-30 Open Boat H Evans, S Kelly, P Mazlin, J Milne, M Vaughan

Beach Sprint R Conn
1930-31 Beach Relay R Conn, N Walters, J Carter, J Gosson
1932-33 Beach Relay D Souter, G Souter, J Carter, J Megson
1933-34 Beach Relay D Souter, G Souter, J Carter, R Geary
1938-39 Premiers (R & R) E Morgan, S Paton, A Owen, W Furey, R Mullumby, B Lilley, A Durrell, G Souter
1940-41 Junior Belt IK Kennington
1945-46 Junior R & R A Coore, B Smith, D Page, J Ashley, D Stewart, G Anderson, D Anderson

Junior Teams J Ashley, A Coore, B Smith, B Hawkeswood
Junior Surf J Ashley
Junior Belt A Coore

1963-64 Junior R & R A Kennington, G Day, A Simon, G Murcutt, G Maloney, E Wise, 
P Tocchini, I Byrne, T O’Donnell

1986-87 Junior Flags G Monckton
Junior Relay G Monckton, A O’Dwyer, A Pettit, D Nable, P Hogg

1989-90 Open Boat R Burgess, D O’Shannassy, D Hoy, A Watt, A Hayward
2005-06 u19 Female Beach Sprint Charlotte Van Veenendaal
2005-06 u19 Female Beach Relay Charlotte Van Veenendaal, Erin Lee, Annabelle Ewen, Alice Wilson
2009-10 Masters 40-44 2km Run Kevin Ferry
2013-14 u17 Female Champion Lifesaver Courtney Sloan
2013-14 Open First Aid Team Melissa Clark, Joseph Mastrangelo III
2015-16 u19 Female Champion Lifesaver Courtney Sloan

Year Event Names
1999-2000 50-54 Beach Sprint P Crombie
1999-2000 130+ Beach Relay Team P Crombie, P Gilmore, C Kearney

Australian Champions

World ChampionsWorld Champions
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SeasonSeason PresidentPresident SecretarySecretary TreasurerTreasurer CaptainCaptain Chief InstructorChief Instructor
07-08 R Arthur MLA WH Commins WJ Bland CD Patterson GH Williams
08-09 R Arthur MLA SAE Wigney WG Fisher CD Patterson HD Spyer
09-10 EW Quirk EMV Shemwell HF Watson CD Patterson A Neale
10-11 EW Quirk EMV Shemwell KV Holmes CD Patterson OGH Merrett
11-12 CD Patterson EMV Shemwell KV Holmes OGH Merrett
12-13 CD Patterson JB Pym KV Holmes OGH Merrett
13-14 CD Patterson JB Pym KV Holmes OGH Merrett OGH Merrett
14-15 EMV Shemwell HH Donkin RN Beale OGH Merrett OGH Merrett
15-16 Col DH Love EH Goulding N Thomson OGH Merrett
16-17 Col DH Love EH Goulding JW Roberts OGH Merrett
17-18 Col DH Love WH Walker JW Roberts OGH Merrett JJ Waterer
18-19 Col DH Love WH Walker JW Roberts LV Hind JJ Waterer
19-20 Col DH Love RC Middleton RJ Hall LV Hind JJ Waterer
20-21 Col DH Love RC Middleton JJ Waterer LV Hind
21-22 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead EM Whitehead
22-23 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead EM Whitehead
23-24 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead FH Dargan
24-25 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead FH Dargan
25-26 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
26-27 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
27-28 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
28-29 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer G Bland FH Dargan
29-30 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer G Bland FH Dargan
30-31 WH Allison AH Owen AC Ellison CW Whitehead GR Webb
31-32 CW Whitehead AH Owen AC Ellison GL Bolton EW Whitehead
32-33 CW Whitehead AV Robison VH Christie GL Bolton NB Bland
33-34 CW Whitehead AV Robison VH Christie DG Soutar SG Berthold
34-35 FH Dargan AV Robison VH Christie DG Soutar SG Berthold
35-36 FH Dargan AV Robison GR Soutar DG Soutar SG Berthold
36-37 FH Dargan AV Robison HM Richards DG Soutar SG Berthold
37-38 FH Dargan AV Robison HM Richards DH Richardson WS Green
38-39 DG Soutar SAR Tuck SJ Law DH Richardson RN Crook
39-40 DG Soutar DK Robinson W Brown DH Richardson RN Crook
40-41 DG Soutar AV Robison R Kennington JR Greary G Hatten
41-42 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck JR Geary G Hatten
42-43 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck JL Jenkins WS Green
43-44 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck AE Fitzgerald WS Green
44-45 RJ Walden JS Gibbons GR Soutar AE Fitzgerald WS Green
45-46 RJ Walden JS Gibbons GR Soutar AE Fitzgerald G Kemp
46-47 JR Geary JS Gibbons NW Higham B McLoughlan FO Baker
47-48 JR Geary CK Paton NW Higham EG Morgan FO Baker/G Terry
48-49 JR Geary CK Paton NW Higham EG Morgan G Terry
49-50 JR Geary CK Paton WC Davidson EG Morgan G Terry
50-51 RN Crook CK Paton R Kennington N Purcell O Willis
51-52 RN Crook CK Paton R Kennington N Purcell G Terry
52-53 JR Geary WA Furey H Rodgers R Ferris G Terry
53-54 JR Geary SG Robinson H Rodgers A Fitzgerald B Terry
54-55 SG Robsinson R Woodley J Allen A Fitzgerald J McCabe
55-56 AE Fitzgerald NR Purcell DT Dunton G McConnell R Tighe
56-57 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G McConnell G Terry
57-58 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G Terry J Wilson
58-59 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G Terry C Anderson
59-60 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
60-61 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
61-62 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
62-63 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Rodgers J Sutherland M Goodfellow

List of Executives 1907-1963



Season President Secretary Treasurer Captain Chief Instructor
63-64 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Rodgers J Sutherland M Goodfellow
64-65 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
65-66 S Tocchini W Sutherland P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
66-67 S Tocchini/  W Sutherland/ P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
 W Sutherland A Kwanton
67-68 NW Kelley G Kinging P Day K Day W Miles
68-69 J Sutherland G Kinging P Day K Day M Goodfellow
69-70 M Goodfellow G Kinging P Day C Barrow T Hanley
70-71 PA Day G Kinging D Ramsland R Higgins A Richardson
71-72 PA Day D Ramsland P Barnes M Simmons N Daniels
72-73 PA Day W Miles T Lane M Simmons N Daniels
73-74 PA Day W Miles/P Day T Lane M Simmons 
74-75 PA Day M Turner D Kaye P McFadyen A McCarroll
75-76 PA Day M Turner/P Day A Shaw A McCarroll A McCarroll
76-77 PA Day T Glenn A Shaw A McCarroll M Turner
77-78 A McCarroll M Turner N Hunt C Fry T O’Donnell
78-79 A McCarroll R Buit N Hunt C Fry J Killick
79-80 A McCarroll M Pryke P Furnel/M Gamlin D Gordon J Killick
80-81 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin D Gordon J Killick
81-82 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin B Walker D Gordon
82-83 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin B Walker/J Killick D Gordon
83-84 A McCarroll G Evans P Nass B Burrows D Gordon
84-85 A McCarroll R Ingram P Nass B Burrows G O’Sullivan
85-86 A McCarroll R Ingram P Nass B Burrows G O’Sullivan/D Gordon
86-87 A McCarroll C Coape-Smith/ G Evans P Duggan J Killick
  R Fountain
87-88 A McCarroll R Fountain G Evans/D Kaye P Hull D Gordon
88-89 A McCarroll/B Walker T Miller D Kaye D O’Shannassy P Hull 
89-90 B Walker T O’Donnell D Kaye D O’Shannassy P Hull
90-91 B Walker B Burrows D Kaye G O’Sullivan P Hull
91-92 B Walker/B Burrows B Burrows/I Donald A McCarroll G O’Sullivan / P Hull
92-93 B Burrows I Donald A McCarroll C Tyrrell P Hull
93-94 B Burrows I Donald A McCarroll C Tyrrell P Hull
94-95 B Burrows I Donald T Moore S Fry P Hull
95-96 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
96-97 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
97-98 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
98-99 D O’Shannassy J Killick/D O’Shannassy T Howard J Colwell / G O’Sullivan
99-00 S Grose T Prendergast/ T Howard  J Colwell G O’Sullivan
  D O’Shannassy 
00-01 I Byrne D O’Shannassy T Howard J Vickery G O’Sullivan
01-02 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Vickery G O’Sullivan
02-03 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard H Matheson G O’Sullivan
03-04 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Latta G O’Sullivan
04-05 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Colwell H Matheson
05-06 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Colwell H Matheson 
06-07 SA Fry KE Abraham G Cooper J Colwell A Traugott 
07-08 SA Fry L Cooper G Cooper J Colwell A Traugott / KE Abraham 
08-09 D O’Shannassy L Cooper K Martin S Job KE Abraham 
09-10 D O’Shannassy L Cooper G Cooper S Job KE Abraham
10-11 D O’Shannassy T Hare-Boyd G Cooper S Job F Traugott
11-12 G O'Sullivan L Cooper G Cooper T Rankine F Traugott
12-13 G O’Sullivan L Cooper G Cooper T Rankine T Hare-Boyd
13-14 T Hare-Boyd L Cooper P Woolcott T Rankine R Chapman
14-15 T Hare-Boyd L Cooper G Cooper R Chapman F Traugott
15-16 F Traugott C Stewart K Ryder R Chapman J Greer
16-17 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano R Chapman K Jenkins
17-18 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano D Hillier K Jenkins






